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E. The Hansens Xeep the House Committee Advised of

Their Intentions and of Mrs. Hansen's Solicitation.
—n S L fiIS. nansen’'s Solicitation
At the time the Property Settlement Aygreement was being

drafted, Mrs. Hansen notified the House Ethics Committee of what

she was doing. A letter from her dated June 3, 1977, reported as

follows (Ex. 18):

The Konorable Richardson Preyer, M. C.
Chairgan, the Select Committee on Ethice .
234k R.H.0.B.

Dear Mr. Chairman:

1 an vriting this letter at the request of my husband, Congressman George
Hepsep, to advise you of my intentions with regards to certain actions
taken by your committee.

As you probably knowv, my husband plans to abide by your decisions with
regerd to bhis request to raise funds to pay off politically-caused personal
indebtedness. Keither he, nor I, nor an independent comxittee will solicit
funds in his behalf.

Hovever, 1 believe the Committee has been totally unressonable in thie retter
and 1 can't help but be disturbed at the double standards I have wvitnessed.

VWoile my husband has carefully msked the Federsl Election Comvwiscion and your
Cozzittee and other appropriate authority for permitsion and guidance to solve
& very real and legiticate personal problen arising froz political dirty
tricks and harrassoent, 1 have witnessed instance after instance of Necbers

of Congress taking solicited funds, including cazpaign contributions, for
personal use vithout asking and the Conxittee bas had little to say about it.

how, let me inform you that I don't intend to stand by and let a Cozmittee
of Congress or anyone else deprive me of the basic rights of a citizen o”
this natiop to pay my bills and protect my home. Many mwecbers of your
Coxmittee talk a good story about eivil rights and the egumlity of wozer
but then they sit there sopugly and deny those very rights to the vife of
s Meober of Congress.

1 az s citizen of Jdaho which is a coznunity property state and therefore
1 stand liable for half of this politically-csused indebtedness. Furthermore,
if xy husband should die, it is al) xy responsibility.

And the debt in question is the result of a concentrated political scear
cazpaign wvhich occurred during my husband's candidacy for Corgress as o
pop=incuxbent in 1974,
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The economic effects to us personally vere disastrous. We found our total
tize consumed month after month in defending mgeinst these malicious attecks
which included serious and irresponsidle charges led by former Congresscan
Vayne Hays and surreptiticus acquisition of our personal credit records by
the State Treasurer of the Democratic Party in Idaho.

This druo roll of false accusations and wisleading press releases frox
Vashington as well as Idaho almost overvhelmed us and left us no tize to
manage our personal business operations which resulted in heavy expenses
and loses -- & situstion vhich has takeh many months to reverse.

¥ot only vere we incurring busipess losses and heavy legal and professional
expenses, but my husband vas precluded from earniog incone because his totel
effort wes required to counter the vicious sttacks.

As a result Bf these false accusations, my husband has had to endure three
yesrs of investigations by various federal sgencies vhich have proved nothing
but his honesty.

Therefore, faced with this burdensome personal indebtedness, I have as &
gstter of love for my husband end children and financial preservation of our
fazily insisted upon @ financial settlepent betveen my husband and cyself
legelly snd properly dividing our property. In pert the property settiecernt
provides thst my husbtand assume such debts as those of the farily, the hoze,
cars, charge cards and such and that I sssune a substantial portion of these
debts politically incurred.

Tnis sepsration of personal finances is done with considersble difliculiy tc
us as a fazily, not only nov but for years to come ~- which seecs & strenge
vay for you to trest the victims of ugly pelitics.

liovever, 1 dc vhat I must. Let pe advise you that as a mstter of persosel
and family survival, I plan to raise funds st an early date to pey ¥ Lelf
of the debls in proper and legal fashion. Your arbitrary rules may extend
to my busband es a Mecber of Congress, but I do not belong to that tody.

1 axz a free agent with rights and responsibilities of my owvn and 1'11 teke
my case to the courts and to the people if necessary.

Sincerely,

$conlt m
Mrs. George V. Ransen
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The point of this letter was that Mrs. Hansen was per-
sonally assuming the debts that were “politically incurred” and
that she intended “"to raise funds at an early date®™ to pay the
debts she had assumed, This letter evoked the first direct
response from Congressman Preyer on this subject. On June 8,
1977, he noted that Mrs, Hansen was intending "to proceed with a
personal fund-raising effort to retire certain debts that you
have assumed®" (emphasis added). The letter acknowledged Mrs.
Hansen's “civil rights™ and her "equality as a woman.® It also
acknowledged that a very substantial change had been made by the
House's rule ;-.:hange of March 2, 1971-' (Ex. 19);

Dear Mrs. Hansen: .

Thank you for your letter of June 3 advising me of your intention to
proceed with a personal fund-raising €¥fort to retire certain debts that
you have assumed.

I hope that you will understand that the content of the advisory
opinions addressing issues referred to us by your husband were in no
vay meant to infringe on your civil rights nor on your equality as

& wozan. Neither were those opinions aiwed in any perscnal vay against
your husband or your family. )

The Code of Ethics adopted by the House on March 2 resulted directly
from sustained public eriticism of scove Merbers® actions prior to that
date. Your statement that Kembers converted carpaign contributions to
personal use before the ethics code was adopted is entirely correct.

It is also true that such conversion was not prohibitied before March 2
as it is now.. .

I have asked the Select Committes's Staff Director if our staff is avare
of any such conversions since the code was adopted. He advised me

that no such situations have been brought to his attention.

Thank you again for your advice and views.

Cordially,

Richardson Preyer

P:bidb
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Mrs. Hansen's solicitation of funds was then carried
out in a highly public manner. It was in no way surreptitious or
clandestine, She mailed letters to potential contributors -- all
outside Idaho to avoid the appearance of campaign solicitations
-- asking for small personal donations {Ex. 20). Approximately
$100,000 was raised in this way to pay off the personal debt. FNo
action was taken by this Committee and no camplaint was filed in
connection with Mrs, Hansen's 1977 solicitation to pay the debts
she had assumed.

F. Congressman Hansen Seeks Legal Advice on His 1978

Reporting Obligations.

The first financial disclosure obligation imposed on
Congressman Hansen after the execution of the Property Settlement
Agreement was on April 30, 1978, when Members of the House were
required to file financial disclosure forms under House Rule XLIV
covering their assets and liabilities during the 3-month period
between October 1, 1977, and December 31, 1977. The question for
Congressman Hansen was whether the assets and 1liabilities
assigned to Mrs. Hansen by the Ayreement were reportable under

the House Rule.
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Congressman Hansen consulted with Mr. Runft, Mr.

Runft's sworn testimony concerning this consultation was as

follows (Trial Transcript, pp. 1076-77 and 1079-80) s

25

& W W -

23
24

25

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

Q. Now, Mr. Runft, 4id you have occasion, following the
sepatration of Property agreemont, to consider the effect of

that agreement on the existing provisions of the House Ethics

Committes concerning the Freporting ana'tlannc!al disclosure
nqultuonu-mdor the Bouse rules?
A. Yes, I 414, end this would be, I believe, in the

spring, late spring, early summer, of 1978,

Qe Wit was your opinion, mr. Runft, concerning whother
the debts that hed been ersigned to Mrs. Hansen dnder the

property settlement agreement had to be reported to the hous:

Ethics Cormittee on fts fora 43 debts of Congressman Hongsen?

that the fact that Mrs. Hansen Pursued her own separate 1ife
and paid her own Separste debts was not an ftem that needed to
be reported by Congressuan Hansen on his Teport required under
the Ethics Rules.

rurtheruort..and 8lvays along with this advice to Mt ,
Hansen, sy opinfon, secondly, was the Committec had the
suthority and the duty to review these Teports, with knowledge,
and advise Congressman Hansen if he Was wrong in any way. Mr,

Hansen, in my opinion, had » right to rely on this.

My opinion was that under those particular eond!tlonsL

"L

ol

fl
I'j
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G. Mrs. Hansen's Debt to the Dallas Bank Is Omitted

from the 1978 Report.

Following this advice, Congressman Hansen di¢ not
include in his 1978 report a debt of Mrs. Hansen's which was one
of the counts in the criminal case tried in District Court. 1In
April 1977, after he had been told of Congressman Hansen's
desperate personal financial situation, Nelson Bunker Hunt had
tried to assist Mrs. Hansen in trading in soybean futures. The
result of approximately eight days of trading at the hands of an
expert selected by Mr. Hunt was a net loss of $33,000. Since the
Hansens did not have the money to pay this obligation, Mr. Hunt
offered to guarantee a $50,000 loan to Mrs. Hansen from the First
National Bank of Dallas, oOn May 27, 1977, Mrs. Hansen flew to
pallas, applied for and received the loan, and then flew to
Chicago to pay the brokerage firm the full amount that had been
lost in the soybean trading. The loan from the Dallas bank ==
made only to Mrs. Hansen -~ was listed as Mrs, Hansen's separate
obligation wunder paragraph 14 ©of the Property Settlement
Agreement., See p. 25, supra,

As a result of the Property Settlement Agreement' and
the advice given by Mr. Runft, Congressman Hansen did not include
the $50,000 loan to Mrs. Hansen in his 1978 financial disclosure
to the House, It is important to bear in mind that personal
solicitation to pay.Mrs. Hansen's debts was lawful only because
they were her. own debts, not the Congressman's. It would not

have been consistent to list Mrs. Hansen's debts on the con.gress-
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man's Financial Disclosure Form while 8till insisting that the
Property Settlement Agreement had made them her debts for

solicitation purposes.

H. Congressman _Hansen Formally Tells the House

Canmittee His Reasons for Omitting His Wife's Transactions and

Requests "Confirmation,”

The Financial Disclosure stateme nt filed by Congressman

Hansen on April 30, 1978, roused a public stir from his political
oppenents in Idaho. They had known from public reports of Mrs.
Hansen's solicitation of funds and of the existence of a large
pefsonal debt‘. They claimed publicly that her assets and liabil-
ities should have been listed on the Congressman's disclosure
form. An article appeared in the May 7, 1978, issue of the Twin

Falls Times News that alleged that the Congressman's 1978 report

was incomplete because it did not list Mrs. Hansen's assets and
liabilities Since the article purported to guote a member of
this Committee's staff, Congressman Hansen protested in a
personal meeting and a timely letter to Congressman Preyer, with
copies to the then Chairman of thfs Committee and the ranking
_hminority member (who is still in that position). We reproduce
here the most relevant portions of the letter of May 9, 1978 (Ex.
21)s ‘ '
Dear Mr. Chsirman:

-

By reason of information which appeared in a May 7th newspaper in my
Congressional District I hsve been subjected to innuendo that my
Tecent Financial Disclosure Statement filed Pursuant to Rule XLIV 4¢
in some manner Inadequate or incomplete. I dzmediately contacted
Staff Directors Donald Terry of the Select Committee on Ethics and
John M. Swanner of the House Committee on Standards of Official
Conduct and certain Members of those comittees to protest the quotes
ascribed to & staff member in that article.
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While there is no doubt ax to the sincerity and fotegrity of Mr.
Raltivanger, the misuse of the quotations has the potential for

causing me great embarrassment. You will remenmber that prior to
arranging wy affairs in crder to satisfy the requircments of uy
situation, that your comnittees were kept advised at 21l times of

the manner io which 1 planned to proceed and then of my wife's intended
course of action and the details of her decislon.

At considerable expense I retained legal counsel to procure a ruling
from the Federal Election Commission and to sssure wy compliance with
the legal matters under jurisdiction of the Justice Department before
moving to sstisfy the rules and standards of the House as administered
by the Select Committee on Ethics and the Committee on Standards of
Official Conduct.

My entire course of mctiop was predicated upon conforming to the law

and to the Tulings of both committees, and wy wife has proceeded likewise
vhen 1t became necessary for her to act independently. We executed a
specifdic property division apreement effective in June 1977 in compliance
with the lav and Fouse Rules to enable each party to be freze of any
Weonstructive control” of the other. This was done at my vife's
iosistence that her civil yights were being violated by arbitrary
Congrescional Rules threatening her survival and that she was eotitled
to independently protect and provide for herself by her own devices.

This property division apreement was not arbitrarily or opportunely
®made for reporting purposes but rather done at an early date to satisfy
House Rules and according to legsl guidelines. Nevertheless this
created an exenmptirn of spouse reporting according to Rule XLIV which
states, "The intzrest of e spouse or any other party, if constructively
controlled by the person reporting, shall be considered to be the same
as the interest of the person reporting.”

1 an confident that wy filing, done carefully with advice of legal
counsel, 16 completely in accord with the appropriate Rules of the
House and v accord vith the course of action of which we have kept
your office completely advised. At this tiwe I respectfully request
confirmstion of the validity of my report.

7

Sincerely ¥

GEORGE HANSEN
Menber of Congress

GH :ww _ ‘
ce: FHon. Charles E. Wiggins Bop, John J. Flynt

king Minori eaber Chairman
::;“:‘w::t:i ::'n Ethics Standards of Official Conduct

flon. Floyd D. Spence
:::1;;:111 Freopel Ranking Minority Mecber

Select Committee on Ethies Standards’ of Official Conduct




123

-34-

This was followved by a letter of Hay 11, 1974, truos

Mrs. Hansen to Conygressman Preyer (Ex. 22):

Bonorable Rich 4son Prever
Chairman, Select Comnittee on Ethics
3557 Bouse Office Building, Annex 2
Washington, D. C. 20515

Dear Mr. I:hnim;::

A property settlement agreement between me and py husband, Congressman
George Rancen, effective in June of 1977 vas duly executed in accordance
wvith Jdaho law.

This vas dooe necessarily to protect wy civil rights, personal privacy
and individual financial right to survive.

Assets and debts assumed by me were precisely what an equitable legal
division would allow, and nothing else.

Raving gone to this trouble and expense 1 consider myself an independent
citizen absolutely and legally mot under the “constructive control" of
my husband. And I might add, he is also an independent citizen not
under my “constructive control."

1 plan to take care of my financial needs and problems in accordance with
the lav and the highest standards of ethics and will in no way be
adversely influencing my husband's ife or responsibilities as & Member
of Congress or whatever capacity he might hold.

But beyond this, what I do with wy private 1ife ic legally my private
business. 1 am not a Megber of Congress and have no further obligation
to you or your committee.

What my husband doec may be yours to supervise, but he i ip no legal
position to involve me.

Sincerely,

(Mrs.) CONNIE S. RANSEN
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A more detailed letter was sent by Congressman Hansun
to Conyressnman Preyer on June 2, 1978, repeating the reguest tor
"confimation™ of the report that had been tiled and describing
further details {Ex. 23}. to response was ever rececived from the
Connittee,

| & Congressnan_Hansen Requests Lejal Advice on_ the

Fttect of the Ethics in Govermnent Act.

The Ethics in Government Act of 1978 DLecane law on
uctober 26, 1978. The tirst reports required to the tiled uncer
the Act were due on May 15, 1979. shortly before that tine,

- Conjressman Hansen asked Mr. Runft how the new law aftected his
apinion on the reportability of Mrs. Hansen's assets ana
liabilities, Mr. Runft researcheu the question over the weekena

ot May 5-6, 1979, as is indicated by his desk calendar (Ex. 24):

Vay= 1979

Wednesday g~y Thursday .  Friday Saturday
9 psenl 4| =83 \ 4 pederdaTgm T T T NOTES
Ak ﬂ""‘ — Ve targ Yptie | B prhon 1 T ,?:“'f.

ji.00 Sk;z“-m[ i

Pzyrn w3 K j»fi‘fﬂ",.,-ﬂg Rl 1 =

goo FirmMieding .:.‘

—

r '
+ o "'V‘l lml

*ou e Y =
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Mr. Runft's testimony regarding the consultation he

then ~ had with Conyr Ha was as follows (Trial
Transcript, pp. 1084, 1086-87):

~ 161 Q. What specifically were you enked?

17 A. Congressman Hansen asked me, actuslly both Mr. and f
18 | Nra, Hansen asked me, under the new Act, was there a uuonab!J
19 | interpretstion available under that Act that would allow
20 | Congress=an Hansen to continus ot to report Mrs, Hansen's
21 | incone under that: Act.
22 I reviewad the Act. I reviewsd some of the
23 | legislative history, statements by Chairaan !ny‘ér as to the
24 | purpose of the act, the Intent of the lr.-t.. I reviewed the

25| provisions of the Act,

17 Q. What conclusion ¢id you arrive at?

is A. Ny conclusion, ot my opinlon, consists of two parts.
19 | First, I believed or I concluded that in light of the property
20 | settlenent sgreement, which separated the property interests off
21 | the parties, that » reascnable interpretation of the sct,

22 | particularly Section 702{d) {2} would allow the Congressman not
23 | to file Information concerning his wife's income:

24 "l'h- second part of my opinion was that this was & now

25 ] Act, Just passed, It had not besn Interpreted yet, and that

36-291 0—84——39
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the provisions of Sectfen 705 of the Act required that the
designated committes, which vas the Select Coamittes on
Official Conduct of the Eouss of Rspresentatives, was required
to ceview these reports and to set up & procedure whereby the
Cosmitter would deteramine whether the reports wete correct,
whether they were complete and whethsr they were in proper tnrJ
and advise the Congressman if they were not.

So on thst basis, if my decision ot my interpretation,
as # possible remedy, was wrong, if the Committee were advised
of what was being done, the Committes then had a duty to advise
Congressman Mansen that this is not the right way to go.

So on that two-part advice, one, I think it can be
done as a rsasonable Interpretation of that Act, in light of
wvhat the Congressman and his wife have done with their property),
and secondly, bassd on the duties of the Committee on nn:lcc._
and, of course, the Committes was en notice that the
congressnan and his ulto_h.a flled the property settlement
agreement and what it was all about, that the Committee then
had the obligation, under the statuts, to advise the
Congressman §f there wn any problem, and he had, as &
congressman, under that statuts, & right to rely on that.

Q. Did you give that advice and that conclusion to
Congressnan Hansen at or about the time that you 914 that
tesearch in May of 13797

A. 1 dia,
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Pursuant to this advice, Congressman Hansen did not
include the $50,000 loan from the First National Bank of Dallas

to Mrs. Hansen on his 1979 EIGA form. The liabilities portion of

the form filed by Conyr Ha looked like this (Ex. 25):

ETHICS IN COVERNMENT ACT--FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

—_—r L peEs
)
CONTINDATION SHEXT

B e mw L -—mdlw
I Ly T — 51
ST L 11
———  Netimeal Sask & 11 -
e JEirst Securizy Beak o
L F —— n:

dhase Flre: Iomal Ak I ___

Had the loan been included, it would have loocked like
this:
ETHICS IN COVERNNENT ACT—FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ETATEMENT

— et psw
Dlatm
CONTINTATION BEET
IV Jara a7 iteme =
—e M.m o et T
=al Sank uf It -
o ATt Sazurisy Buek ino
—_— X Fiate Bask nr
—— ¥R =

It is difficult, if not inmpessible, to discern a
nefarious and criminal motive for this omission. If the form had
included the Dallas bank item, it would not have disclosed any

unlawful, unethical, or even politically damaginy conduct,
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J. Mrs., Hansen's 1679 7Transaction and 1980 Liability

Are Omitted from EIGA Forms.

(1) The Silver Futures Transaction, == In Januvary 1979

Mr. Hunt assisted Mrs. Hansen in trading in silver futures by
putting her in touch with Les Ming, an Oklahoma City commodities
broker, Over a period of three days, Mrs. Hansen made 587,000 in
the silver futures market. The trading account was maintained in
Hrs. Hansen's name (Ex. 26), and Mr. Ming's handwritten telephone
log reflected that he received his instructions from Mrs. Hansen

(Ex. 27):

‘ Mr. Ming testified that except for one very brief
conversation with Conygressman Hansen, in which he was told that
Mrs. Hansen was the only one interested in silver trading, he did
not speak to the Conyressman during the days that the tradiny
took place (Trial Transcript, pp. 388-89):

A.  kre Lewin, to tne best of my recollection, on' 1 er
nut siying that my recollection wipht have been mors pure thes
Lhan now, but to the best of my recollection, and 1 have beon
OVur this trenscction In wy mind thousands of times sinc. tric
thin) has bugun, that bunker wujgested th t I eall Conyroseman
Grorge hansen, en? Longrecsmin luasen fumedictely etivises n he
wos not interested but Mrs. ilanuen wight be or wes intsresiel,
iie transfarred ¢ to Mre. Connie l-nscn, and I had no rors
viscussions with Grorje hansen, unti) he called to sei 3¢

wvsrything went well,




The Hansens reported the $87,000 profit in full on
their tax return for 1979 (Ex. 2}. Following the legal instruc-
tions he had received in the previous two years, Congressman
Hansen did not report Mrs. Hansen's silver futures transaction on
his 1979 EIGA form.

(2), The Hunt Purchase of the Loan, =- The Dallas bank
loan that had been arranged for Mrs. Hansen after her losing 1977
venture into soybean futures was in default by 1980 although Mrs.
Hansen had paid at least one interest payment. The Dallas bank
called on the loan's guarantor, Nelson Bunker Hunt, to pay the
obligation under his guarantee. He did so, and thereby purchased
HMrs. Hansen's note (and the obligation for accrued interest) from
the bank. Thereafter, his attorneys demanded payment from Mrs.
Hansen (Ex. 28). Mr. Hunt also had Mrs. Hansen sign notes to him
for the amount he had paid to the bank:

,61,»3.1.2 Washington, D.l. . June 3, 1950 |F

On May 25, 1931------—-------m,rmmmm--
to pay to the order of No By HUNL & & = = = = = = = :
mﬁm:'?---'------ --.---"D.n",m.

The sun of Sixty One Thousand Five Hundred Three and L2/1C0 e ===« = POLLARS,

"tf;ﬁ'f'!“lh‘%f'-'-"m XD am ﬂ.lte_p - mm e e === yntil paid, intereel to be pa'd

TS and il vot so pard, sl prinvipal and intarest, of the option of the holder of this note, 16 hecui=s 1rine:
¥ dus and collectible Any past herec! may be paid at any tirme. §i this note is placed in the Aands of an atisioey tr entiection. 1 we
p we #5d agres te poy Rolder's 0 fees and cevia, even though no suil ar action s Nied Peceun, of 8 mut o
ar actrer sn Niled, the smount d' -nﬁ n.lﬂl&h nmm-y‘o fona ahail ba lizad by caurt o Lourts in which the suit o actian, ir'udiif sny
-m--.' win, in tried, hoasd

H uctuating rate mm date until maturily, < -

- wnie' rate shall be one percen: per annum acove COnLIS S, HAUSEN, 3307 . Pledmon:

the prime interest rate charged by the First Mational _. _ . Arlinrion, Va. 2207
[ Esnk in Dallas at its oiTice in Dallas, Texas (but in no m:a 'shall the maxinun rate

ehlrgcu hlnmdu- axceed the maxinmun raie of interest permitted by applicacle :I.u).

el L E X T a e T T
Canzm e &:u

and for interest that had accrued thereafter (Ex. 29),

T
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The same liability had been omitted from the 1978
Financial Disclosure Statement filed with the House on the advice

of Mr. Runft, concurred in by James McKenna, who subsequently

became a member of Cong Ha ‘s staff. See pp. 52-61,
infra. on the basis of this consistent advice, Congressman
Hansen again omitted Mrs. Hansen's liability from the EIGA forn
filed in 1981.

K. ﬁds Borrowed by Congressman Hansen for Use by a
Citizens' Action Group (and Actually Used by that Group) Are

Omitted from His 1982 EIGA Form.

The £inal allegation made in Federal Court against
Conyressman Hansen concerned the EIGA report he filed in May
1982, to cover the 1981 calendar year. The allegations did not
concern assets or liabjlities of his wife or funds that had been
obtained for personal use by the Hansens. They related to three
loans that were made between July and Hovember 1981 fron
individual businessmen in virginia. The money was borrowed in
Congressman Hansen's name, but the funds were not intendea for
his personal use, The Congressman solicited interest-bearing
loans in amounts of 525,000, $60,000 and $50,000, respectively,
for the activities of a group known as the Association of
Concerned Taxpayers (“ACT").

Testimony in Federal Court established that the
Congressman intended before the summer of 1977 to form a citizens
group that would push for tax reform. A direct-mail campaign to

enlist financial and citizen support for the group was planned to
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begin at the time when Congressman Hansen ‘would introduce his
Taxpayer Protection Act. The Act was first introduced as H.R.
4093 on July 9, 1981 (Ex. 30}, but the citizens group was not yet
off the ground, EKnowing that substantial funds would be needed
for the initial direct-mafl campaign, Congressman Ransen
solicited $B5,000 in loans in July and August from Carl McAfee, a
well-known Virginia lawyer who had represented the family of one
of the Americans held hostage in Teheran. Mr. McAfee had come to
know Congressman Hansen in 1973 and 1980 because the Congressman
had assisted Hcafee's efforts to contact the hostage, to travel
to Iran, and‘tu try to secure the release of the hostages. Mr.
McAfee lent the money to the Congressman for the purpose of
pramoting the book Congressman Hansen had written attacking the
Internal Revenue Service and with krowledge that a nonprofit
organization was going to be formed to popularize the book (Ex.
31; Trial Transcript, p. 592).

Later in 1981, after ACT was actually formed and the
" direct-mail campaign seemed imminent, Congressman Hansen traveled
to Virginia to obtain another $50,000 loan for ACT from a
president of a virginia bank who was a friend of Mr. McAfee.
There is no doubt that the Congressman's purpose in traveling to
virginia was to solicit funds for ACT, not for himself, The

check he wrote to pay Piedmont Airlines for the flight to
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virginia for himself and Mrs. Hansen clearly designated the
objective of the travel (Ex. 32):

M/M == Tric/va

A.C.Ts == Bus-

HON. GEORGE V. HANSEN . 4077

POCATERO, daH

MRS, CONNIE 5. HANSEN , - -
row 2.7 5 2 QLI_J_LZ._EI 92301hz41
*,

/@sl’_'_
975

N s o s 8

Mr. Meade loaned §$50,000 to Congressman Hansen, and he
test:fied that he did so not to assist the Congressman with any
personal debts but to provide funds for the efforts of a
nonprofit corporation that would be promoting the Congressman's
book (Ex. 33; Trial Transcript, pp. 765-67). The timing of this
loan coincided with the introduction of H.R. 4931, a revised form
of the “Taxpayer Protection Act® (Ex. 34)., It also followed
shortly after the introduction of a second important aspect of
Congressman Hansen's tax-reform package -- H.R. 4821, the “Tax

Simplification Act,® also known as the “Flat-Rate Tax®™ (Ex. 35).
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A total of §135,000 was borrowed by Congressman Hansen
from the Virginia businessmen, It was undisputed in Federal
Court that by the end of March 1982, Congressman Hansen had

- advanced to ACT and to its suppliers a total of $135,000. That
is shown by the following chart, which was introduced at the
trial on the basis of checks reflecting payments made personally

by Congressman Hansen:

Defense Date of
Exhibit Check Payee Amount
51 11,09/81 Martin Advertising 54,500.00
52 11723781 Martin Advertising 8,000,00
53 11724/81 Martin Advertising 7,500.00
54 12,04/81 Postmaster 200,00
55 12/09/81 Martin Advertising 5,000.00
56 12/14/81 Metro Printing 5,000,00
57 12/17/81 Martin Advertising 1,750.00
58 02712782 Martin Advertising 7,500.00
59 03/04/8B2 Postmaster 48.35
€0 03/15/82 Metro Printing 10,000,00
61 03/16/82 Metro Printing 1p,000.00
62 03/18/82 Metro Printing 15,000.00
63 03/719/82 Metro Printing 15,000.00
64 03/22/82 Metro Printing 10,000.00
65 03/24/82 American Mailing List 9,600.00
66 03724/82 American Mailing List 9,700,00
67 03/24/82 American Mailing List 6,200.00
68 03724782 American Mailing List 9,500,00

TOTAL $134,4908,35
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Sometime before May 15, 1982, Congressman Hansen asked
James McKenna, the attorney on his staff whom he had also con-
sulted on other EIGA questions, whether the $135,000 in loans --
nominally made out to him, but actually used by ACT -- were
reportable on his 1982 EIGA form. Mr. Hckenna advised that they

were not (Trial Transcript: PP. 1424-25):

s Q@  DID YOU AT ANY TIME IN MAY UF 1982 MAVE ANY DISCuS-
i ] s10n WiTH CUNGRESSMAN HANSEN ABUUT THE RELATIUNSHIP BETWIEN

? | A.C.T., THE ASSUCIATION OF CONCERNED TAXPAYERS, AND THZ

L] ETHICS IN GOVERNMENT ACT FORM WHICH HE WAS TO FILE 0% MY

®§ 1sTH, 19822

A A WE HAD EXTENSIVE DI1SCUSSIUNS ABULUT IT.

n Q 0.K. COULD YOU PLEASE DESCRIBE FUR THE CUURT &%D

2 | JURY WHAT DISCUSSIUNS YOU HAD WITH CUNGRESSMAN HANSEN.

I A WELL, AT APPROXIMATELY THAT TIME, 1 BELIEVE 17 a5

1 | Ty DAYS BEFORE THE 15TH, HE FOR THE FIRST TIME ADVISED ME

16 | THAT THE FUNDS, OR SUME OF THE FUNDS WHICH HE HAD INVESTED

16 0 N A.C.T. HAD IN FACT BEEN BURRUWED FRUM INDIVIDUALS WITH

v | THE ANTICIPATION THAT THEY WOULD BE USED IN THIS PRUGRAY.

1 | AnD THE 1SSUE WAS ADDRESSED, WHAT DU YOU DO ABOLT 1T U% Tni

W ] LIABILITY PAGE =« ON THE LIABILITY YTEM OF THE DISCLLSVRE

0 FORM.
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WE HAD EXTENSIVE DISCUSSIONS ABOUT, YOU KNOW, WHAT
WAS THE COMMITMENT MADE AT THE YIME AND THAT SURT OF THING.
AND HE ADVISED ME THAT HE MAD SOLICITED THIS OBLIGATIUN, AND
QUITE FRANKLY, AT THE TIME | DOUN'T THINK } Hhs“AHARE = 1T's

DIFFICULY IN VIEW UF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS, BUT 1 DUN'T THINK 1

WAS AWARE THERE WAS EVEN A MULTIPLICITY. ALL 1 WAS AWARE
OF WAS THAT THERE WAS AN INDIVIDUAL LENDER INVUOLVED AND THAT
THE MUNEY MAD GONE INTD A.C.T.

IN VIEW OF THE PROMISE OF CONFIDENTIALITY, 1IN VIEW
OF THE FACT THAT AT THAT TIME A.C.T. WAS ACKNUWLEDGING, AND
AS FAR AS 1 KNOW STILL ACKNOWLEDGES, THE LIABILITY TO MR,
HANSEN FUR THE FUNDS HE ADVANCED, 1 ADVISED HIM THAT 1T wOupLD
BE PRUDENT TU LEAVE 1T OFF THE FORM ON THE APPREHENSIUDN
THAT: ONE, WE HAD PROMISED COUNFIDENTIALITY TO DONDRS, UR TU
FINANCIAL SUPPURTERS IN ANY ONE OF SEVERAL CATEGURIES, DUNURS,
WHATEVER; THAT A.C.T. HAD BY THAT TIME ACKNOWLEDGED 17§
OBLIéATIDN; AND THAT IN FACT THE MUNEY HAD BEEN SPENT AS HE
HAD REPRESENTED TO THE LENDERS.

IN ADDITION, 1 BELJEVE 17'S IN THE NEXT SECTION,
WE PUT H1S POSITION AS THE DOMINANT PERSUN IN THE A.C.T.
URGANIZATIUN AND LEFT OFF THE THREE I1TEMS UN MY ADVICE THAY
1T WOULD NOT COUNSTITUTE A PERSONAL OBLIGATIUN OF MR. HANSEN

IN THE EXACT SENSE OF THE WORD.
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In their presentation to the jury in Federal Court, the
prosecutors insinuated that the loan from Mr. Meade had been an
improper bribe of some kind, designed to enlist Congressman
Hansen's support for a "hydrogen car®™ project in Australia. The
allegation was ridiculous, particularly since Congressman Hansen
had done nothing in relation to that project other than to
arrange a meeting, at Mr. McAfee's request, in the office of the
Secretary of the Army. The Congressman left the meeting after
the initial introductions and was neither asked to, nor did, make
any follow-up contacts or phone calls. Three and four months
after the meetinyg, he made telephone calls to the Pentagon to
complain about possible intimidation and harassment of certain
federal employees who had been contacted with regard to that
project (Ex. 36; Trial Transcript, pp. 1505).

The prosecutors alsc insinuated guilt on the part of
Congressman Hansen because in April 1982, federal bank examiners
discovered that Mr, Meade was involved in bank irregularities.
Ultimately, Meade was indicted and pleaded guilty to bank fraud,
The evidence established, however, that Congressman Hansen did
not know of Mr. Meade's problems until after his 1982 EIGA form
had been filed. And he had no way of knowing that Mr. Meade was
dishonest when he borrowed money from him for ACT in November
1981,

Conclusive proof that there was no impropriety between
Congressman Hansen and Mr. Meade emeryes from the unsuccessful

efforts the prosecutors made to apply pressure to Meade. When
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first sentenced, he was given two years' imprisonment by the
pistrict Judge (Ex. 37). He then moved for reduction of his
sentence. While the issue of his sentence was pending, he was
contacted by the prosecutors, who encouraged him to cooperate in
the "investigations of Congressman George V. Hansen." Meade's
lawyer communicated to him that "it would probably be to his best
interests in the long run to offer cooperation in the prosecution
of the cases against Congressman Hansen in hopes of obtaining
immunity for himself.®

Nonetheless, Meade replied, through his counsel, “that
bribery was never considered, much less discussed by him or in
his presence, either when he made bank loans to Mr. McAfee and
Mr. Rogers to replenish resources from which they made loans to
Congressman Hansen, or at the time that Mr., Meade made a personal
loan from his individual resources directly to Congressman
Hansen. He says he has no knowledge of any events which could
reasonably be construed as bribery of Conyressmanm Hansen by
himself or anyone else at any time®™ (Ex. 38; reproduced in full
on the following pages). If, notwithstanding the difference
staring him in the face between a long jail sentence and a short
one {or no imprisonment at all), Mr. Meade had no information to
incriminate Congressman Hansen, it is clear that there is simply

nothing to the patently absurd insinuation of bribery.
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May 4, 1983

The Hon. James M, Cole

The Hon. Reid Weing:+ 2n

Attorneys for Public Integrity Section
Criminal Division

United States Department of Justice
315 Ninth Street, 4th Floor
wWashington, D.C. 20530

Re: John D. Meade, Jr.

Dear Jim and Reid:

We appreciate your candor in discussing with John D.
Meade, Jr. and myself Mr. Meade's potential criminal liability
arising from grand jury proceedings and other investigations of
Congressman George V. Hansen. Since our conference in your
offices on May 4, 1 have reviewed with my client in great detail
the factors discussed.

I have advised Mr. Meade that he should make full and
frank disclosure of any and all information he has concerning
any wrong doing on the part of Congressman Hansen as it relates
to your investigation. I have further advised him that if any
such full and frank disclosure would incriminate Mr. Meade,
either because of inconsistencies with his sworn testimony
before the grand jury, or because of his involvement in any
transactions which could be construed as bribery, it would
probably be to his best interests in the long rua to offer
cooperation in the prosecution of the cases against Congressman
Hansen in hopes of obtaining immunity for himself.

In his mind and without benefit of a transcript, Mr.
Meade has carefully reviewed his grand jury testimony, and he
positively affirms that his entire testimony before the grand
jury was absolutely true to the best of his knowledge ard
belief, both then and now.

Purther, Mr., Meade assures me that bribery was never
considered, much less discussed by him or in his presence,
either when he made bank loans to Mr. McAfee and Mr. Rogers to
replenish resources from which they made loans to Congressman
Hansen, or at the time that Mr. Meade made a persconal loan from
his individual resources directly to Congressman Hansen. He
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Messrs. Cole and Weingarten
Page Two

says he has no knowledge of any events which could reasocnably be
construed as bribery of Congressman Hansen by himself or anyone
else at any time.

1 can understand your being suspicious of the
circumstances which have been related to you pertaining to the
two-loans made to Congressman Hansen by Messrs McAfee and
Rogers, and the one loan made to Congressman Hansen by John
Meade. However, if it were Mri Meade's purpose to fabricate a
false story, 1 would hope that he would be clever enough to come
up with a story which would be less suspicious and more
plausible. As we all know, it is not uncommon for the truth to
appear far more suspiciocusthan a lie. 1In the instant case, we
have to take the position that these suspicions have no . basis in
fact.

Mr. Meade would be happy to cooperate with you in any way
possible, and he feels no obligation or desire to protect
Congressman Hansen or anyone else involved here, but could not
truthfully furnish any additional or different testimony other
than that which he has already given before the grand jury. If
he should, at any later time, recall or learn of any new
information which would either directly or indirectly shed light
on your case, he has assured me that he will immediately furnish
any such information to you through this office.

In the meantime, if I can be of any assistance to you in
pursuing any further inquiries in the matters about which John
Meade has any information,. I would be glad to assist, and I am
sure John would, also.

With best regards, 1 am,

Sigcerely,

o

-

Jy'D. BOWIE
JDB:dcb _/

€C: Mr. John D. Meade, Jr.
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I11I.
- WHAT 1S CONGRESSMAN HANSEN'S DEFENSE?

A. Mrs. Hansen's Liabilities and Transactions.

The first time he was asked by the FBI in September
1981 why he had failed to report the $87,000 silver profit on his
EIGA form, Congressman Hansen replied (Ex. 5):

[Hle had discussed this matter at lenygth with

his attorneys JAMES MCKENNA and JOHR RUNFT.

A consensus was reached among them that

because of the Division of Property which he

and his wife had obtained in the State of

idaho at least one year prior to his wife's

silver contract purchases, any transactions

solely entered into by his wife are not

subject to disclosure in the Financial

Disclosure Statements.

The evidence presented in Federal Court established
that the question whether Mrs. Hansen's assets and liabilities
had to be reported on financial disclosure forms had been
discussed exhaustively among the Congressman and the two lawyers
on whom he relied for legal judgments, They both testified that
beginning with 1978 -- when the issue arose in the context of the
House's Financial Disclosure Statement -- they had advised the
Congressman that Mrs, Hansen's liabilities and transactions were
not reportable., Mr. Runft's testimony with regard to 1978 was as

follows (Trial Transcript; pp. 1079-80):
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Q. What was your opinlon, Mr. Runft, concerning whether
the debts that had been assigned to Mrs. Hansen under the
property settlement agreement had to be reported to the house

Ethics Cormicttee on ity form as debts of Congressman Hansen?

My opinion was that uniler those perticular con'ition.
Liiet the fact that Mrs. Hansen pursued her own scparate 1lile
and pal2 her own scparate debts wes not an item that neoded to
be reported by Congressman llansen on his report reguired unler
tue Ethics hules.

Furthernore, anc always along with this advice to Mr.
ilansen, my opinion, seconlly, was the Comnmittec had th.
cuthority and the cuty to teview these riports, with knowlcdge,
«nd acdvise Congressman donsen (f he was «rong in any way. Mr.

hansen, In ny opinion, had & right to rely on this.

86-291 O—B84——10
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.With regard to 1979 == the first year of EIGA reporting
Runft said (Trial Transcript, pp. 1086-88):

2. Did you come to sny conclusion regarding whether or
not Conjressman Hansen was rcquired, by the Etaics iIn
Soverament Act, to report debts of his wife, of Connie llersen’
on his tthics in Goverament Act form after he had siqne2 the
szpyration of property ajreenent?

A, Yes, 1 ¢ld.

3. shat conclusion did you arrive at?

;. my conclusion, or my opinleon, consists of two parts.
Firat, I oelicved or I soncluded that in light of the property
settlement sgreement, which separated the property interests of
the parties, that a reasonable interpretation of the Act,
particularly Sectien 702({3) {2) would gllou the Congressman not
to file informaticn concerning his wife's income,

The second part of my opinion wes thet this was & new

Act, just passed. It hod not been interpreted y:t, and that

the provisions of Section 705 of the Act required that the
desigrated committee, which was the Select Committee on
ot}lelal conduct of the House of Representatives, wvas required
to review these reports end to set up a procedure vhereby the
conmittee would deternine whether the reports were correct,

whether they were complets and whether they were in proper forn
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%o on that basis, if my Jecision or my Intcrpretation,
as a possible remely, was wrong, if the Cnénit:ce were 2dvised
of whit was buing done, the Comnittee then had a duty to advizel
Conjressman idansen that this s not the right way to jo.

o on that two-part advice, one, I think ft can be
lone as a rezasoneble interpretation of that Ace, in l1ijht of
what the Congressmen and his wifc have dore with tneir Properery
and secondly, based on the Jutles of the Comnittee on netize,
end, of course, the Committee was on notice that the
congressnan and his wife had f{led the property settloment
areement ?nd what it was all about, that the Committee then
nzd the obligation, under the statute, to 3dvise the
Conjressman {f there was any problem, and he had, as a
congressman, under that statute, a rigat *o rely on that,

Q. Pid you give that advice and that conclusion to
Congressnon Hansen at or cbout the time that you Jid that

reszarch in May of 13792

A, 1 dl_ﬁ.

Qe That was prior to May 15th, 19797

A,  That Is correct.

Q. To your knowledge, ¢id Congressman Hansen accept that
ddvice?

A. ¥es, he did.

g To your knowledge, wes that same 8dvize followed in
succecding yeors?

A. To ny knowledge, it was, ycs.
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Mr. Runft also testified that the matter had been

discussed with Mr. McKenna (Trial Transcript, p. 1088}:

i9

70

Qs Wege there discussions on the jencral subject of the
Ethizs in Government Act between yourself and Congressman
sans:n, an) %o mention Somcone else who wzs nontloned, “r.
MTRenna?

A. Yes, there were. #r. MckKsanna had, in the interin,
cene on the George uansen staff, Mr. McKenne 15 also & lawysr.
iz had beceme @ nenmber of Seorge’s staff, ine in succeeding
nenths, and octudlly, in Jifferent years, we have 2iscusscd
taese catters from time to timej aysin, hased on the Committee'l
knowing what the Conjressman’s situotion was and his right to
r:ly on the Comnittec's Juty to report 3ny conclusions 1t would

reech ¢ifferent than the Tonjressman's.
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Mr. McKenna testified as follows with regard to his

advice concerning Mrs. Hansen's assets and liabilities (Trial

Transcript, pp. 1348-51):

20
21
22
23
24

25

- ll
» W LY

L-L B

-

10
11
12
13

Q. WAS THERE A TIME FRCM AND AFTER THE PERIOD LEER Y3U
BEGAN WORKING FOR CONGRESSMAN HANSEN IM DECEMBER OF 1975 THAT
YOU DISCUSSED WITH CONGRESSMAN HANSEN THE EFFECT CF THE ETHICS
IN GOVERNMENT ACT ON 111S OBLIGATION TO REPORT VARIOUS FINANCIAL
TRANSACTIONS?

A. YES, SIR. IT WAS A SUBJECT OF DISTUSSI1ON ONCE THE

ETHICS IN GOVERNHENT ACT WAS PASSED. ALTHOUGH THE NATURE OF
THE REPORTING PROCEDURE CHANGED, AS THE NATURE OF THE MECTHANICS
WENT FROM RULE TO STATUTE,

OUT OF AN EXCESS OF CAUTION, MR. RUNFT EXAMINED THE
STATUTE IN GREAT DETAIL. 1 EXAMINED TRE STATUTE AND WE
DISCUSSED THE EFFECT OF THE QTATUTE WITH THE CONGRESSMAN, THE
AFFECTED PARTY.

0. DID YOU DISCUSS WITH THE CONGRESSMAN THE EFFECT OF THE
STATUTE ON HIS CBLIGATION TO REPORT THE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
OF MRS. HANSEN?

A. YES, SIR.

Q. DID THAT HAPPEN ON ONE DICASION OR ON SEVERAL
OCCASIONS?
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A. IT HAPPENED QN MORE THAN ONE OCCASION.

Q. AND DID ¥YOU IN THOSE CONVERSATIONS WlTH THE
CONGRESSMAN EXPRESS YOUR OPINION AS TO WHETHER OR NOT HE HED AN
OBLIGATION UNDER THE ETHICS IN GOVERNMENT ACT TO REPCRT ASEETS
AND LIABILITIES OF MRS. HANSEN ON THE ETHICS IN GOVERNMENT AIT
FORN?

A. YES, 1 DID.

Q. AND WHAT WAS THAT OPINION?

A. 1T WAS MY OPINION THAT GIVEN THE LEGAL STATUS OF THEIR
RELhTiONSIIIP. THAT THEY WERE IN FACT SEPARATE INDIVIODUALS, MY
CONCERN WENT FURTHER AS TO WHETHER OR NOT THE CONGRESSMAN EVEN
HAD AN OPTION UNDER THE PRIVACY STATUTES IN ORDER TC REVEAL

P .

THIS WAS HE NOT PERHAPS GOING BEYOND THE RIGHTS THA7-3RS.
HANSEN HAD FOR HER PRIVACY. AT THE TIME, MY CONCERN WhA3 LESS
WITH THE REPORTING OR THE OPTION OF THE REPORTING THAN A
VOiUNTARY REPORT hléHT IN FACT HAVE VIOLATED MRS. HANSEN'S
RIGHTS.

WE WERE BOTH STRONGLY OF THE OPINION THAT THE ETHICS
IN GOVERNMENT ACT DID NOT CONTEMPLATE THE SITUATION THAT MR.
AND MRS. HANSEN FOUND THEMSELVES IN BY REASON OF THE SEPARATION
AGREEMENT,

- AND COULD ¥YOU PLEASE EXPLAIN FOR THE CCURT AND JURY

WHAT WERE THE GROUNDS FOR YOUR CONCLUSION IN THAT REGARDT WHAT

DID YOU BASE THAT CONCLUSION ON?
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A. WELL, I BASED THE CONCLUSION ON THE FACT THAT, ONE,
THIS SOLUTION HAD IN. ESSENCE ALREADY BEEN IN SUBSTANTIAL WAYS
WORKED OUT WITH THE DOMINANT COMMITTEE, WHICH REMAINED THE
DOMINANT COMMITTEE, THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE BCTH UNDER THE
RULE AND UNDER THE STATUTE, THAT THE SEPARATION ASREEVENT BAD
IN FACT, THEY HAD BEEN APPRISED CF IT; THEY HAD AT LEAST
ACQUIESCED IN IT, AND THAT THE STATUTE CONTEMPLATED AN ECONI®IC
SPDUS;L RELATIONSHIP THAT Hf FELT WAS KD LONGER IN EXISTEINCE;
THAT THE PARTIES WERE AS TO THEIR ECONOMIC REALITIES WHICH WLRE
REQUIRED TO_BE REPORTED ON THE FORM, ACTUALLY, FROM TH:T PO!&T.
OF VIEs NO LONGER JOINT AS HUSBAND AND WIPE. -

Q. 1S IT FAIR TO SAY THEN THAT THERE WERE TwC EASES FOR

YOUR DECISION, ONE WAS THE PRACTICE ANL THE UXDERSTANDING WITH

THE COMMITTEE, AND THE OTHER WAS THE STATUTE AND THE PURPISE OF

THE STATUTE?

#. Y¥YES, SIR, THAT 1S A FAIR STATEMENT.
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The matter was considered totally resolved in Congress-

man Hansen's mind by the advice of the attorneys. This was

demonstrated by Mr. McKenna's testimony on redirect examination

(Trial Transcript, pp. 1528-29):

- v

-

.23

25

{ woul? not surprice m~ that the Congressnan would not sonsult uJ

2. NKow, Wr. bPringarten essked you whether you g:ve
spteific advicze to Corngressman Hensen with ie;ari to thc forr
£iles in 155u an? 19ll, in other words, the forms reletirng to
the siiver tronscction zn? tne form relating to the losn Isow
N21so. Bunker Kant, and I believe you replier you 2il mot. You
2itn't razull thet you gava specific edvice on those partisular
treasastisns?

ie Taet is Correct.

2ot Tel: us, Mr. Mcilenni, on tie suuject of spoaccl
sroptrey, th2 property ownel or liabilities irsurres o *rs.
4zns:=n, by 195U and 1981, in Congressman Hansan's offic=, was
it necessiry to give espseifiz advice on those particulir kinls
of gurstions?

A. Th. subjcct he: buen Ciscussed. A sonfludion Hud
been renched. Tai matter was consicerel close? es fir @s e

ware concirned, By ®"we®, I mesn beth myself an? sr. Ronft., 1Y

on individurl itens pursuznt to the advice that he had b.un
receiving for four years &t that timec.

Q. Was there any condition or any qualification whelever
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to the advice that you and Mr. Runft had bsen giving him
pPreviously concerning property or transact&pns_u@ich Mrs,
HBansen had engaged in or received, properti';;;;;;od or

transactions she had engaged in? .

A. Only were that they joint, they would not drop out,
unde}'our consistent advice under the tule.

Q. But if it was her transaction, it was hLer note, as in
1831, there was no guestion about that?

. Right or wrong, it has been our consistent opinicn
th:t tne arrangement under the Id:zho community property law
exemzted Mrs. Hansan 2s an independent economic entity 23
reports from uncder thet act.

2o A trensaction such as a the silver transaction, which|
she alone was th: parson on the prpers, was elso ®iropgpes out®,

is that right?

h. hs far as we were concerned, it was 2 =los.3 issue.
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*The advice of Messrs. Runft and McKenna was not under-

minod:lt all by the fact -- which the prosecutors emphasized in
. Federal Court =---that Congressman Hansen made personal use of
funds that Mrs. Hansen had obtained through the silver trans-
action or through the loan from the Dallas bank. Mr. Runft was
the Hansen's family lawyer; he knew that they continued to minyle
their assets, Indeed, he testified that the Property Settlement
Ayreement did not require them to act differently (Trial
Transcript, pp. 1063-64):

19 ds Does the property seiilement agreement prevent them

20 | from hnvlng joint accounts {n any way?

21 A. No.

22 Q. Does it prevent the wife from using the husbsnd's

23 | property or the husbsnd from using the wife's property?

24 A. No more so than it would two unmarried peojle living

25 | together. But what it does 30, it terminates the aspects of

1] property derived fros marriege, such as the right to inherit,
2 thf community property rights, the sutomatic one half eguity
3| interest in all income of the other spouse, things of this

4 | nature, which, of course, are very, very important in

5 | subitancive matters.

An element in Mr. Runft's conclusion was his view that
this Committee had been advistd, through the correspondence that

he had helped draft, of the existence of the Property Settlement
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Agreement and of the fact that this warranted excluding Mrs.

Hansen's liabilities and transactions from the EIGA reports. Mr.,

McKenna similsily relied on that fact, He also testified that he

ha¢ personally continued to advise the Committee staff that the

Property Settlement Agreement was the reason for the omission of

Mrs.

Hanser;'s liabilities and transactions {Trial Transcript, pp.

1347-48):

19
20
2]
22
23
24
25

-

a w N
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10
1
12
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0. AND FRO™ AND AFTER THE TIME THAT YU JOINED
CONGRESSMAN HANSEN'S STAFF, WAS THE HOUSE ETNICS COMMITTEE CR
THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON STANDARLS OF OFFICIAL CONDUCT
CONTINUALLY NOTIFIED OF THE FACT THAT SUCH AN ARRANSEMENT HAD
BEEN EN*ERED.INTD AND WAS IN EFFECT? ‘

A. YES, SIR.

0.  BY WHON?

A. 1, PERSONALLY, HAVE HAD CONVERSATIONS WITH KEVEERS OF
THAT STAFF, SPECIFICALLY INVOLVING THE EXISTENCE AXD EFFECT
THAT DOCUMENT.

' Q. AND DURING WHAT PERIOD OF TIME HAVE YOU HAD SUCH

CONVERSATIONS?

A. 1T BEGAN?

Q. I AM NOT ASKING FOR SPECIFIC DATES. GIVE ME A
BEGINNING AND ENDING TIME.

A.  PROBABLY NO LATER THAN EARLY 1930, AND AT LEAST FOUR
CR FIVE TIMES SINCE THAT TIME.

9.  AND IN THESE DISCUSSIONS YOU HAVE ADVISED TEEM THAT
TH1S SEPARATION OF PROPERTY AGREEMENT CONTINUES TO BE IN EFFECT?

A.  IN TRUTH, I DID NOT HAVE TO ADVISE THEM. THEY WERE

AWARE OF IT BEFORE 1 GDT THERE., BY WHAT MEANS 1 DON'T KNTa.
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In view of the Committee's statutory obligation to

.review EIGA forms to determine whether they are ®"complete" (2

U.S.C.

Hansen

§ 705), and in view of the rzquests made by Congressman

for "confirmation® of his reports, the Committee cannot

now, in good conscience, condemn the Congressman for having

followed a practice that was open and notorious and that the

Committee has never sought to correct.

B.  The Loans by the Virginia Businessmen.

Mr. McKenna testified that Congressman Hansen custom-

arily consulted him each year on gquestions relating to the EIGA

forms.

On each of these occasions, Mr. McKenna had provided his

best legal judgment to the Congressman. In May 1982, Mr. McKenna

said he was asked about the amount that the Congressman had, by

the end of March of that year, advanced to the Association of

Concerned Taxpayers (Trial Transcript, pp. 1424-25):

s 8

?

10
"
L H
7
"

Q DID YOU AT ANY TIME IN MAY OF 1982 HAVE ANY DISCus-
S10N WITH CONGRESSMAN WANSEN ABOUT THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN
A.C.T., THE ASSUCIATION OF CONCERNED TAXPAYERS, AND THE
ETHICS IN GOVERNMENT ACT FORM WHICH HE WAS TO F{LE 0N MaY
15TH, 19822

A WE. HAD EXTENSIVE DISCUSSIONS ABOUT iT.

Q 0.k. COULD YOU PLEASE DESC&IQE FOR THE COURT AND
JURY WHAT DISCUSSIUNS YOU HAD W1TH CONGRESSMAN HANSEM.

A WELL, AT APPRUXIMATELY THAT TIME, 1 BELIEVE 1T wWas
YWD DAYS BEFURE THE 15TH, HE FOR THE FIRST TIME ADVISED ME

THAT THE FUNDS, OR SUME UF THE FUNDS WHICH HE HAD INVESTED
IN A.C.T. HAD IN FACT BEEN SURROWLD' FRUM INDIVIDUALS WITH
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THE ANTICIPATION THAT THEY WOULD SE USED IN THIS PRUGR:&M.

AND THE ]SSUE WAS ADDRESSED, WHAT DO YOU DU ABUUT 1T UN THE
LIABILITY PAGE == ON THE LIAB]LITYAITEH OF THE DI1SCLUSURE
FORM.

WE HAD EXTENSIVE DISCUSSIUNS ABUUT, YOU KNUW, WHAT
WAS THE CUMMITMENT MADE AT THE TIME AND THAT SURT OF THING.
AND HE ADVISED ME THAT HE HAD SOLICITED THIS OBLIGATIUN, AND

QUITE FRANKLY, AT THE TIME 1 DUN'T THINK 1 WAS AWARE -- 1T'S

DIFFICULT IN VIEW OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS, BUT | DUN'T THINK 1
WAS AWARE THERE WAS EVEN A MULTIPLICITY. ALL 1 WAS AWARE

OF WAS THAT THERE WAS AN INDIVIDUAL LENDER INVOLVED AND THAT
THE MONEY HAD GONE INTO A.C.T.

IN VIEW OF THE PROMISE OF CONFIDENTIALITY, IN VIEW
OF THE FACT THAT AT THAT TIME A.C.T. WAS ACKNUWLEDGING, AND
AS FAR AS 1 KNUW STILL ACKNOWLEDGES, THE LIABILITY TO MR.
HANSEN FUR THE FUNDS HE ADVANCED, 1 ADVISED MIM THAT 17 WOULD
BE PRUDENT TU LEAVE IT OFF THE FURM UN THE APPREMENSION
THAT: ONE, WE HAD PRUMISED CONFIDENTIALITY TO DONORS, OR TO
FINANCIAL SUPPORTERS IN ANY ONE OF SEVERAL CATEGURIES, DUNURS,
WHATEVER; THAT A.C.T. MAD BY THAT TIME ACKNOWLEDGED 17S
OBLIGATION; AND THAT IN FACT THE MUNEY HAD BEEN SPENT AS HE
MAD REPRESENTED TO THE LENDERS.

IN ADDITION, 1 BELIEVE 1T'S IN THE NEXT SECTION,
WE PUT H3S PUSITION AS THE DOMINANT PERSUN IN THE A.C.%.
ORGANIZATION AND LEFT OFF THE THREE 1TEMS ON MY ADVICE THAT

1T WOULD NOT CUNSTITUTE A PERSUNAL OBLIGATIUN OUF MR, HANSEN

IN THE EXACT SENSE OF THE WURD.
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The Congressman followed Mr. McKenna's advice and did
not include the Virginia loan funds =-- which had already been
utilized by ACT -~ as debts that he owed in 19B8l., 1In fact, had
he listed them, it would have appeared as if he had borrowed
these funds for personal use, rather than disclosing the truth --
i.e., that he had been a conduit between the lenders and the
organization whose goals the lenders were seeking to promote and
encourage.

Congressman Hansen believed in 1982 -- based on Hr.
McKenna's advice -- that since these were not truly his personal
debts and since there was an implicit obligation to preserve
anonymity of the lenders, the loans did not have to be included
on his EIGA form. No evidence or legal view asserted by the
prosecutors has overcome that legal opinion. It is valid today
and justifies the exclusion of the Virginia loans from the EIGA

report.

.
WAS THE JURY TRIAL FAIR?

This Committee is, of course, not bound in any manner
by the verdict returned by the jury on April 2. The Comnittee's
Rules give no weight to the jury finding whatever. The jury
verdict is merely a triggering mechanism. Like the filing of a
complaint, it initiates a process whereby the facts are

investigated and determinations are made.
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Nonetheless, it is natural to wonder why the jury
returned the verdict it did, particularly if the evidence as
conclusively proves innocence as we believe it does. We believe
the trial was unfair for many reasons, the most important of
which =~ in a legal sense -- will be presented on appeal, if an
appeal is necessary. We enumerate briefly here some of the major
factors that combined to deprive Congressman Hansen of a fair

appraisal of his guilt or innocence.

A. The Ppublicity Immediately Preceding the Trial
Prejudiced the Ju.ors, '

The trial Legan on Harch 1_9. the day when publicity
concerning the Ethics in Government Act and Mr., Edwin Meese was
at its peak. Newspapers -- particularly The Washington Post ==
had been covering the revelations regarding Mr. HMeese's
nondisclosure of his wife's loan (and other assets) for the
preceding week on the front pages. It appeared to be a time when
public opinion was most heaviiy tilted against public officials
who failed to disclose assets or liabilities on their disclosure
forms, and when vindicating the statutory obligation seemed to be
& positive citizen's duty.

In this climate, we =-- as counsel for Congressman
Hansen -- moved for a change of venue from Washington, D.C., to
either Richmond, virginia, or Baltirore, Maryland or any other
location where the daily publicity would be less intense. The
judge refused to move the trial, She also refused a short

continuance until the Meese publicity would die down. 5She also
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refused a longer continuance, Entirely on her own, Judge Green
determined that the jury should be sequestered -- i.e., locked up
in hotel rooms and removed from their families for the entire
duration of the trial.

It developed during the yoir dire of the prOSpectivé
jury that many jurors knew about the HMeese allegations. By
sequestering the jurors, the judge removed them from society when
feeling against Mr. Meese was highest, thereby leaving them with
the impression that they would be doing a great public service by
convicting any public official who left something off his EIGA
form, irrespective of his motive.

B. _The Seguestration Influenced the Jurors To Vote

for Conviction.

It is commonly accepted among defense counsel that a
sequestered jury is more likely to convict a defendant than one
that is not sequestered. That is true because the sequestration
magnifies the enormity of the offense in the mind of the jurors
and, to the extent the jurors feel resentment over being "locked
up,” they blame it on the defendant.

In preparing a Motion for a New Trial in this case, we
consulted a leading Washington psychologist who is an expert in
relationships within groups. Dr. Lawrence Sank, who has written
extensively on the subject and practices in the field of clinical
psychology, also had experience with those who were held hostage
during the takeover by Hanafi Moslems of the B'nai B'rith

Building, the District Building, and the Islamic Center. Dr.




157

Sank has provided an extensive affidavit on the consequences of
jory"sequestration. in which he enumerates the cpnditions which
tilt a seguestered jury decidedly against a defendant in a
criminal case. The affidavit is Ex. 39 in our Appendix, and it
demonstrates why the jury unfairly returned the verdict it did.

C. Unfair Prosecution Tactics, Which the Judye

Refused to Correct, Influenced the Jury Against Congressnan

Hansen,

The prosecution engaged in a number of tacties that
diverted the jury from the true issues in the case. Notwithe
standing rep'eat.ed defense objections, the trial judge failed to
keep the evidence within proper bounds,

(1) Huge amounts of money were cited. -- The prosecu-

tion emphasized the details of the soybean and silver trans-
actions and provided charts which made it appear as if Mrs.
Hansen participated in t-:ransactions in which she risked
$2.489;700 and $3,877,000. Those enormous inflammatory numbers
were paraded before the jury, as was the huge net worth of Nelson
Bunker Hunt, The prosecution also described meticulously a
transaction in which a §$125,000 check was allegedly written on an
Idaho account containing only several hundred dollars, as if
large amounts of money were being carelessly tossed about by
Congressman Hansen and his agents., ' In fact, the $125,000 check
was written only on a banker's assurance that $125,000 would
immediately be released from a brokerage account for deposit

before the check cleared,

36-201 O0—84—11




158

-69-

{2) The prosecution was permitted to present a "legal

cxaft:.' -= The correctness of the leyal advice given by Messrs.
Runft and McKenna was not a proper issue for the jury. I1f
Congressman Hansen asked for legal advice in good faith and
received such zdvice, he was entitled to rely on it even if other
lawyers would disagree with that advice. Nonetheless, the judye
permitted the prosecution to call the Chief Counsel of the Office
of Government Ethics in the Office of Personnel Management to
testify that he disagreed with Hr. Runft. such testimony is
clearly prohibited by applicable court decisions because it
carries excessive weight with the jury.

(3) A _host of irrelevancies were introduced. =-- The

prosecutors were permitted to parade before the jury irrelevant
checks that Congressman Hansen had writtem and to impugn his
inteyrity with some loan applications he had submitted. The
documents were offered in evidence when Mrs. Hansen was on the
witness stand, even though she had no personal knowledge of them
and could not explain them. Since Congressman Hansen, on the
tactical advice of counsel, exercised his right not to testify.
the inflammatory material remained unexplained.

{4) A different legal standard was applied because the

defendant was a Congressman. -- Counsel for the defense reguested

an instruction to the jury that all defendants are equal in the
eyes of the law. The prosecutor replied that such an instruction
was not necessary because he would be telling the jury that they

could not be more strict with Congressman Hansen merely because
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he is a Congressman, In fact, during his closing argument, the

prosecutor said the following in challenging the Congressman's

reliance on the advice of counsel (Trial Transcript, p. 1921):

n

172

18

”

THE ADVICE-OF-COUNSEL DEFENSE. 1IT FAILS FOR THREE .
SEPARATE REASONS: FIRST, HE WASN'T SEEKING LEGITIMATE ADVICE.
HE IS NOT JOE SCHMOE ON THE STREET HHO-DOESN'T KNOW ANYTHING
ABOUT THE LAW. HE IS A LAWMAKER HIMSELF. HE KNOWS HOW TO
READ._ HE KNOWS THAT -- THE LAWS THAT ARE PASSED BY CONGRESS.
HE KNOWS WHAT CON;RESS WAS UP TO WHEN THEY PASSED THE ETHICS
IN GOVERNMENT ACT. HE WASN'T LOOKING FOR A LEGAL INTERPRETA-
TION. HE'S A LAWMAKER. HE WAS LOOKING FOR AN EXCUSE. AND

THAT 1S NOT A GOOD FAITH REASON ‘FOR GOING TO A LAWYER.
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D. The Summation Was Outrageously Inflammatory.

The prosecuter's summation == in both its opening and
closing portions -- were efforts to inflame the jury against
Congressman Hansen. The prosecutor first tried to turn this into
a case involving "peolitical corruption® =- which was plainly not

an issue (Trial Transcript, pp. 1839-40):

THE LAW IN THIS CASE AND THE 1SSUES IN THIS CASE
ALL COME DOWN TD ONE THING: WHAT WAS GEORGE HANSEN'S INTENT
WHEN HE D;DN'? REPORT THE HUNT DEALS AND THE VIRGINIA LOANS?
WAS 1T SIM?LY A MISTAKE? WAS 1T AN ACCIDENT? WAS HE ACTING
IN GOOD FAITH? 1 SUBMIT TO YOU, LADIES AND GENTLEMEN, THE

EVIDENCE 1S OVERWHELMING. IT WAS NO MISTAKE; 1T WAS NO ACCI-

DENT; THERE WAS NO GOOD FA1TH. THESE TRANSACTIONS, WHEN
OPENED TO THE FRESH A}R, WHEN YANKED CUT OF JOHN RUNFT'S
OFFICE -~ AND 1 SUBMIT JOHN RUNFT NEVER THOUGHT THAT PROPERTY
SEPARATION AGREEMENT WOULD SEE THE LIGHT OF DAY == WHEN
YANKED OUT OF MING'S TOLL RECORDS, MCAFEE'S MEMORY, MEADE'S
BANK, IDAHO BANKS, AND MANY OTHER PLACES, EMIT AN ODOR THAT
CAN BE ;ICKED UP ALL THE WAY IN POCATELLO, IDAHD. AND IT'S
NOT THE ODOR OF SPRING FLOWERS; 1T IS THE STENCH OF POLITICAL
CORRUPTION.

GEORGE HANSEN WENT TO GREAT LENGTHS TO HWIDE THAT
STENCH, TO HIDE JT FROM HIS PEERS ON THE HILL, TO HIDE lT'
FROM THE PRESS, TO HIDE 1T FROM H1S CONSTITUENTS, THE GOOD

PEOPLE OF IDAHO, AND TO HIDE 17 FROM THE LAW.
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And when he stood up in rebuttal, and had the last word
to the jury, the prosecutor turned the question'ot whether the
EIGA forms. had been deliberately falsified into a test of "ethics
in government™ (Trial Transcript, pp. 1924-25):

LADIES AND GENTLEMEN, THE BACKDROP TO THIS CASE
IS AN ACT CALLED THE ETHICS IN GOVERNMENT ACT. WHAT GEORGE
VERFON HANSEN DID IN THIS CASE 1S THE CENTER STAGE. A PHONY
.SEPARATION AGREEMENT DESIGNED TO GET AROUND THE ETHICS
COMMITTEE. 1S THAT ETHICS IN GOVERNMENT?
HUNT ENGINEERED AND CONTROLLED DEALS RUN THROUGH
HIS WIFE'S NAME TO WIDE KIS INVOLVEMENT. 1S THAT ETHICS IN
GOVERNMENT?
A $50,000 LOAN TO COVER A $33,000 LOSS THAT'S NEVER

PAID BACK. 1S THAT ETHICS IN GOVERNMENT?

| $87,000 IN HIS WIFE'S NAME THAT HE RUNS THROUGH
TWD BANK ACCOUNTS IN CHECKS TO HIMSELF. 1S5 THAT ETHICS IN

GOVERNMENT ?

$135,000 FROM A BANK SWINDLER THAT HE RECEIVES AND
THEN PROMOTES A HDAX AT THE PENTAGON. 1S THAT ETHICS IN
GOVERNMENT?

THE QUESTION 1S SIMPLE: IF IT 15, THAT'S ETHICAL
BEHAVIOR, F}ND HIM NOT GUILTY; SEND MIM BACK TO CONGRESS WITH

A MESSAGE THAT WE EXPECT ND MORE OF ITS MEMBERS.
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Each of these assertions «- as well as other impro-
prieties duriny summation -~ were objected to by defense
counsel. The judge refused to take any remedial measure.

There were, in addition to the above, numerous other
errors in the trial relating to prosecution evidence that was
improperly admitted and defense evidence that was improperly
excluded, The trial was not a fair presentation of proof to an
open-minded jury., It was a parade of irrelevant and prejudicial
material to a jury which began and ended with a significant bias

against Congressman Hansen.

Ve

WAS THERE A VIOLATION OF HOUSE RULES?

A fair appraisal of the evidence leads, we believe, to
the conclusion that Congressman Hansen violated no House rule
whatever, The way in which he completed the EIGA forms in the
years 1979 through 1982 was based on legal propositions expounded
by his attorneys, under oath, in a court of law, There was no
concealment of what he had done or why he had done it. He acted
consistently with the theories of law which entitled Mrs. Hansen
in 1977 to solicit contributions to cover the obligations which
she had assumed as her own personal debts. It would have.been
inconsistent with that position to have listed her debts, or the
profit she made in the 1979 silver futures transaction, as

reportable liabilities or transactions of the Congressman.
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Moreover, this Committee took no action during all
those years either (1) to advise the Conyressman that it dis-
agreed with Mr. Runft's and Mr. McKenna's view of the law or (2)
to make any formal request, by way of letter or otherwise, for
additional information relevant to a determination. Under these
circumstances, Congressman Hansen reasonably concluded that the
policy he was following was approved by the Committee.

There is, in addition, another indication that what
Congressman Hansen did is not a violation of House rules. A
review of the EIGA forms as they have been filed and printed
discloses that if Congressman Hansen violated House rules in
failing to complete his form properly, many other Members might
be subject to similar sanctions,

For example, Section VIII of the present EIGA form
‘requires Members of Congress to respond affirmatively or nega-
tively to the question: "Are you aware of any interests in
property or liabilities of a spouse or dependent child or
property transaction by a spouse or dependent child which you
have not reported because they meet the three standards tor
exemption?* For 1981, 45 Members failed to respond to that
question. For 1980, there were 40 who failed to responc to that
question, and for 1975 there were 34. Moreover, there were four
Members of Congress umq for 198l refused to report assets of
immediate family members and did not satisfy EIGA's statutory

exemption standards. (There were, similarly, 4 for 1979 and 2
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for 1980. For 1978 == the first year covered by EIGA =-- there
were 11 such Members.)

our review of the filed reports also indicates that for
the years 1978 through i28B1 there were, respectively, 53, 42, 52
and 49 Members who did not complete at least one of the first
seven sections of their EIGA reports. Will all these Members be
found to have violated a House rule? Will all of then be
disciplined?

This case concerns a single Congressman who unfortun-—
ately reported a blackmail threat to the Associaga Attorney
General and demanded that it be investigated promptly. The
blackmailer was wultimately apprehended and found to have
committed other crimes., But his offenses did not create head-
lines, so he was warned and sent on his way. The Justice
Department then turned on the target of the blackmail and
investigated him from all angles and in all ways. The prosecu-
tors could find no "political corruption® whatever, So they
charged the Congressman under a law that has never been enforced
before and that cannot be uniformly enforced without subjecting a
substantial part of the Congress to the risk of criminal
imprisonment and fine,

The Congressman established at his trial =-- probably
far more cogently than most would be able to do ~- that he relied
on advice of counsel in campleting his forms. Merely because a

Jury consisting heavily of present and former government
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employees has chosen to ignore that undisputed defense, the
Congressman now risks discipline under the House's rules,

This result is not what Congress intended when it
enacted the Ethics in Government Act. Indeed, as was argued to
the District Court -- and as will be arguved, if necessary, on
appeal -- neither the Act nor its legislative history supports
what the Justice Department has done in this case, Authority
over the completeness and accuracy of EIGA reports was not
intended to be left to federal prosecutors, who could thereby
hold a sword over the heads of Members of Congress. The law does
not prescribe a criminal sanction for false EIGA reports, and
this Committee should make that legislative intention clear,
while exonerating Congressman ﬂansen of any wrongdoing.

Respectfully submitted,

NATHAN LEWIN

STEPHEN L. BRAGA

MILLER, CASSIDY, LARROCA & LEWIN
2555 M Street, N.W., Suite 500
Washington, D.C. 20037

(202) 293-6400

FRANK A.S. CAMPBELL

1111 = 19th Street. NoW.,
Suite 301

“ashiﬂgton' D.C. 20036
(202) 659-0550

Counsel for Congressman_Hansen

May 15, 1984
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LCear “r. iunt, -
During January of 1979 you gave en 3867000 brite to zZep. George
Xansen of Idaho. To be gore speclfic, the peyoff was handled
as follows: .

Cn the morning of January 16, 1979, you bought 125 contracts
of silver throuzh your commodity broker at King Commodity
Services in Cklehora, WYhen 1t became obvious ttat thls trade was
profitable you told your broker that this trade was not really for
you but was for rerreserntative nansen and to open an account in
his name and put the trade- wth tke buillt in profit- into his
account. To help hide the payoff you opened the account in the
naze of Connie Kansen, 2ep. Georse Eansens wife. Two cays later
on Jen. 18 the silver positions were sold for e profit of 4E7475.
However, haznsen could not heve the money sent tc hir bteczuse he
had & rergin call of 3125000tzht was reguired to cerry the position.
Therefore, you wired or caused to be wired 3125000 to the broker
in Eensens neme, Thls removed his obligeation end allowed the
Frofit to be wired to him the next dey, .corpleting the payoff,
The purpose of the brlbe was to secure Rep. Hansens support
in your bid for a large silver mine in Idaho.

e have Yerox coples of all statements and transactions centioned
above, e eare, of course, guessing es to vhy tou made the payoff
and have only secondhand proof that the ,mergin call was zet with
Yyour pmoney. However, under close exarination and the sworn
testirony of all parties involved, we belief the proof would be
overvhelminz., An investigation of Kansens 1979 tax return

would elso te enlightening. If he did no declare the income, 1t
1s freudentX¥. If he did, he cannot justify the source.

It is a felony crime to teke or make a bribe to a U,S. Congressmen.

Ferhaps you are expecting that I will cemand & blackmall payment.
You zre wrong. I have the utcost respsct for you, Sir. I was
Turious when the comrodlty exchenges and the congressren and
the Corcodity Futures Trading Coxrission zzinged up on you and’
eccussed you of manipulating the cariket. %Wny is just buying it
renipuleting. They ere the ores that zenlguleted 1t by changipg
the rules. They should be ilnvestigzted, rnot you.

WYnat we viould like is a 3440,000 lozn for 120 days. This money
1s to be used to help finance en operetion thet you would cer-
tainly give your fidll support to If we could provide you with
detalls. Unfortunately, we can not. There:are too many llves at
steke. I can tell you that the operation does not take place in
this country end will break no US laws. It is time that soreone
sterted fighting back et the enemles of this country end we are
doing 1it.
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To pake the point cleer, we ere asking for a loan of %440,000.

If we do not zet it, we will give everythirg we have to the FBI.
1 am sincerly sorry to rave to threaten you lixe that tut

meny Feople are dezending on us. I repeat, this is a loan.

You will be pzid back in 120 dsys. Your money is being used to

p urchese one iter necessary for the operation. The item will
not actually go with us on the operation so even if we fall those
Yd54%¥ vho remain behind have orders to sell the item and return

your roney.

You are to wire the money to our account in the Cayren Islends,
The sccount is at the Cayzan Yatlonsl Esnk ené Trust c2mgany, LTI,
Grand Ceyrsn, Caymen Islends. The accoun t rurber is €00615.

‘it is in the nsme of Gordon %“srner, The Xoney must be there as
soon as possible but no leter than Thursday, April 9. If

the money 1s not in place by April 9, we shell contact the

FBI on spril 10, -That is the last thing in this world we wish

to do. * S e .

ae
T Ve me -
. ]
-
L

Thank you,. o _ -

P § You have our word of honor that everything we have
relating to the payoff will be destroyed as soon as we
recelve the money. .
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cawormcssor BRIEFING BOOK EX. 7

SHANK, IRWIN, CONANT, WILLIAMSON & GREVELLE

Date
Atrention

From

Re:

INTERSFFICE MEMORANDUM

April 7, 1981

Mrs. Hansen Silver Matter File

-

Ivan Irwin, Jr.

On April 6, I met with Congressman Hansen,
Mrs. Hansen, John Runft from Boise Idaho, and
James McKenna, Staff Counsel. I was furnished

~ with some documents by Mrs. Hansen's counsel

(Mr. Runft) concerning the opening of her account
at Ming, the trading information, the letter and
response in connection with the House Ethics
Committee. Mrs. Hansen was not real sure of
exactly how the silver trading had been done.
She knew that Bunker had arranged for her to
contact Ming and had recommended him as a broker
and may have discussed some timing and the
placing of orders in connection with the silver
contracts. All counsel agreed that the complete
facts should be obtained in connection with the
note at First National Bank, and Tom Whitaker
began supplying information to me over the
course of several phone calls in connection with
the entire chronology. It turned out that
Bunker had alsc made an interest payment of
approximately $3,100 plus the principal and
interest which had been paid off. Before this
information was complete, we went to the
Department of Justice and met with Rudolf
Giulian. and Ken Caruso. I was advised that
Giuliani was the Associate Attorney General
designate, and was in charge of the criminal
section of the Department of Justice. His
address was given to me as Suite 4119, United
States Department of Justice, 10th and Consti-
tution, Washington, D.C. 20530. There was a
general review of the facts relating to the
receipt of the letter and what had been done
with it. Giwliani said that he was not parti-
cularly interested in the facts asserted because
he assumed that they wele untrue or we would
not be there, but was interested in any ideas
that we might have on who was responsible for
the mailing of the letter which he said was
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clearly mail extortion. I gave to Giuliani the cases
we had come up with and the statutes. U.S. v. Lance,
536 F.2d 1065; U.S. v. Santoni, 585 F.2d 667, cert.
denied, 59 S.Ct. 1221 and U.S. V. Von Der Linden,

561 F.2d 1340. Also, copies of 18 U.S.C. §§873, 876
and 1951. .

Congressman Hansen made a fairly complete expla-
nation, supported by John Runft, of the IRS matters,
some OCEA matters, and so forth involving Wayne Hayes.
He advised that there was no present political issue
on the floor before any of his committees.

Giuliani said that he wonld get a number two man
or number three man from Director Webster's office and
have them over to Congressman Hansen's office in the

- afterncon and that the matter would be kept very

confidential in view of the sensitive nature of the
situation.

In the middle of the afterncon, a call came in
from someone who identified himself as John Heieck,
who said he:wwas with the FBI and wanted to interview
Bunker Hunt, the Hansens and the attorneys. He then
said he could not get to it for some time and wanted

_to talk to me about who I thought was responsible. I

declined to do this on the telephone and without
identification. Congressman Hansen called Caruso
and complained about the amateurish manner in which
the thing was being handled. We were then told that
scme other FBI agents would be there later in the
afternoon. .

At about 5:20, a Tom Hoy and Tim Trailer showed
up and conducted interviews of at least some of the
people. I was interviewed first and lef: to return
to Dallas. Hoy and Trailer wanted to know if N. B.
Hunt, Tom Whitaker and Cecil Casterline would be
available for interviews and I said they would and
they said they would be sending some Dallas agent over
for those interviews. I said I really would prefer
that this matter was kept within the Washington office
and the investigating team kept to a minimum in light
of the confidentiality assurances we had received from
Giuliani. Hoy and Trailer were amenable to the 'idea
that ‘they would come to Dallas to continue the inter-
views but said they did mot call the shots, they would
have to get approval. /,7

L?.,-— .Q ~ .
’ - m-ﬁhy
. Ivan, Irwin, Jr. {

TT T fam
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#D-302 (REV 3-8-77)
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
BRIEFING BOOK EX. ¥
%‘ L D of seeacripnon 471 3/8Y 7" =T
& g
s On April 7, 1981, at approximately 5300 pum., -5 . =%

¢ '%. 8, Congressman GBORGE HANSEN telephonically contacted ':-_.E .
“SA TIMOTHY B, TRAYLOR, HANSEN furnished the foliowing: o

Bince the FBI interview of him and his wife
was conducted in the a.m, hours of April 7, 1981, he
has been thinking a lot about attempt to extort money
from BUNT. After rezding the extortion letter over
carefully, HANSEN felt that the clock is ticking towards
the deadline and apparently the writers of the letter are
under pressure to accomplish their mission, HANSEN said
there was the possibility that if the extortion demand was
not satisfied, they might follow up with violence and
retaliation against a U, 8. Congressman was also possible,

HANSEN noted that the Grand Cayman was in the
vicinity of Cuba, Nicaragua, and El Savador, Because
certain excerpts from the extortion letter indicated the
money was to be used to finance an operation cutside the
Us S., the possibility of exiled Cuban, Wicaraguan or E1
Savadorian groups based in the U, 8. and fighting for the
overthrow of their government regimes was conceivable,
HANSEN suggested that the State Department or the CIA should
be notified of the existence of such a letter,

At this point, SA TRAYLOR reminded HANSEN that
the FBI could not insure the confidentiality or dlacreetness
of the investigation should the State Department or CIA be
notified of the letter, HANSEN agreed and reiterated his
desire not to interfere with the FEI's investigation,

SA TRAYLOR concluded the telephone conversation
by offering to discuss HANSEN'S proposition with his
superiors and thereafter recontact him with a proper

decision,
nveatguiion s 8/ 7/81 « _Washington, D, C. e ¢ WFQ _OB-4595 =5
by SA TIMOTHY E, TRAYLOR:tkio Daw & 4/9/81
This & ing neither not fusions of the FBI W is the property of the FIR! and is foanad to yout sgency.

n and its conlents Bm not 10 be Sisirbuted oulside your Sgency.
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FD-202 (NBV. 3-8-T7;
© g
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
i‘ [ S22 Dote of yerncinion 4/23/83

on 11 7, 1981, U, 8, Congressman GPORGE
mmu:’;nd D;.trlel". of tdnho.m interviewed

fa his office, 1125 Longworth Building, Washingtom,

De Co (WDC), Special Agents (SAS) TIMOTEY E, TRAYIOR

ead THOMAS §, HDY, Congressuan MANSCN furnished the

following informatioms . -.:-.'-'i- Coee

. 7. On March 31, 1981, he I.uﬂ a telephone _

call from WCLSON BUNKER EUNT and IWAR mm. R

attorney, HUNT informed MANSEN that he had received -
€12 not wvant to &iscuss _. .

A TR

a letter, however, he, WMT,
its contents over the tel Mfm. arrangements
were made for IRWIN to travel to Washington, D, &, (WDC)
on April 1, 1981, maummhmmmny

with HANSER, -~ : 2o .

.. HANSIN advised that on Apr 1,
planned, IRWIN came to his o!ﬁcc and briefed hh
his 'it.‘ CONNIE m-‘ on the h m
khgthel.tberhmmsm:m!lﬂ. Be told |
IRVIN that basced on his knowledge of it, matter .

~~ should be referred to the proper authorities, ing
T Z° the meeting, IRWIN told HANSEN t“at upon return to
Dallas, Texas, he would make a ¢.py of the letter and
send it to HANSEN, HANSIN stated that on 11 2, 1%81,
he called IRWIN in Dnllas, Texas, to if the
letter had yet boen malled, HANSIH advised that he
received a copy of the letter via federal express on

Al*n 3, 1981,

- After xaviawing the letter, HANSIN detided
that @uthorities must be informed because in his opinion
acr act of extortion through the mail had occurred,.

H\NSY was also concerned that international forces
could ponihly ba parp.tratm of the extortion letter,
Y Tee T aean

- . - -,
LI L] .

» -

“ ' DL 9A<3800
———mﬁl-——- —mehingtou;—a;—&———-ﬂo o—m-eusas#ﬂ
SAS TINOTHY E, TRAYLIOR and _
e THRAS S, BOVskio LY S 7, 1.V /.. B——

Mis. & nalther nor conclusions of the FAL & is the proparty of the FBI and s foaned to your agency:
& and s conments am net 10 ba distiduted outtids your agency

36-291 0—84—12
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After reviering the lettar, NMANSEN @alled
his attorney JOIN KAIFT in Soise, Téaho, and cxypticelly
discussed the extortion Letter with him, “¥e requested
that RIRTFT make arrangensnts to come to WDC em April €,
1901, Thereafter, FANSEN discussed the letter with ii-.8%
JAMES T, NC KENFA, Staff Attormey, Decause he tas grivy
€o certain information set forth in the extortion lstter,
HANSIN called the Department of Justice (DOJ) and arranged
for a meeting on April 6, 1981, Thersafter, he called ~
SUNT anéd requested that IRWIN Teturn to WDC with the original
letter to attend the DOJT mesting scheduled for April 6,
19€1, o e, dee 25wk TR B TIRE SR SRRETUNE AT

- P b B e s e

Oon “ﬂll " 1”1' HANSER, ('} and - ) -
MC KENMA met with RUDOLPH GUILIANI, Associite Attorney | (
General Designate and his assistant XEN CARUSO at DOJ,.
HANSEN stated that the original extortion letter amd
envelope had previously been sealed in plastic and that
he, IRWIN, had mnds only one copy vhich had been provided
to HANSEN, During the mceting, the original letter was °
tumed over to possession of GUILIAXI, =« - - o

. HANSEN advisaed that former Congressman WAYRE
HAYS 2t one time was Chairman of the Campaign Committee
for Democrats, IYn 1974, HAYS was attempting to prove -
that the Pederal Rlection Commission (FEC) was unnecessary.
HAYS becama aware of some late campaign reports from
‘WANSTH and pressured DOJ to investigate him, He continued
that the PEC began an investigation into the matter in
1974 which culminated in April, 1975, HANSER indicated
that he was charged with several misdemcanors surrounding
the PrC investigation, but since that time has received
exoneration from the FEC, Because of litication involving
(rilh’l.nmtigaum. HANSEN incurred a legal debt amounting
to hundrecs of thousands of &ollars, At this point, HANSLN
advised that he aid not fcel WAYNE HAYS was involved in the
extortion, adding "I don't think old personalities would
be involved, It appears the person involved knew little
about the MANSIN side of things,® o
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BARSEN stated that to help alleviats their.
trenendous legal dedt, he and his wife CONNIE divided
ir property in order to permit her to raise funds,
-\ [ Be noted that approximately $100,000 was raised through
~2 | mail conscriptions, .CONNIE HANSEN then decided to invest
. comodities in order to raise money toward the legal
Lo PRl oenle? whot NI Sramefoazet §1:I,%,
L R T T T T T T
~:-  Regarding WELSON BUNKER HUNT, HANSZN said that
he, HWNT, has mever given a dime to anyone for anything
in Idaho, and that he certainly has never approached him
for any favors, HANSIN advised that he became acquainted
with HUNT at maetings., CONNIE HANSIN also became friends
with HUNT at the same meetings and apparently thay began_
~— 2 %o discuss investments, HANSIN recalled his wife asking
hin one day to spesk with LES MING, stock broker, who was
on the telephone, MING informed HANSEN that the silver
market wvas rising and was a good investment, HANSIN said
t on one other occasion he spoke with MING about the
amount of money required to pay the margin eall for the silver
dnvestment CONNIE had arranged through MING, HANSIN tele-
phonically contacted RICHARD GARVIN, Vice President of First
Security Bank, Pocatello, Idaho, and arranged ta_borrow _
$125,000 needed to meet the margin call, HANSEN believed
that he provided MING's name to GARVIN during their conversa-
tion and that GARVIN consented to check out the proposed
silver transaction, At HANSEN's request, GARVIN wired
$125,000 to Continental X1llinois National Bank, Chicago,
Illinois, to Cargill Investor Services gencral bank account
number 72-05-201 and then transferred into his wife's
Cargill account number 32-32-008,

HANSLN advised that he is well acquainted with
GARVIN an¢ judged him to be a very responsible and pro=
fessional incivicual, HANSEN further acdvised that he did
not send GARVIN any cdocuments relating to the silver
transaction, According to HANSIN, the only individuals
outside he and his wife cognizant of the silver transaction
were LES MING, RICHARD GARVIN, STLVE SUANSON, HANSIN's
CPA in Boise, Idaho, and JOHN RUNFT,.
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[ SN LY
- ’Ms’s o Py ....s.
G é .-.r ’. l'n&' G, ’r w"'“"‘ T
‘5'!. Erw o ML o S fe "

we e -

L 2 Inls-oyluatht um-mm
€he extortion letter apparently Xnew little abqut him
o his wifa, e €& aveies U127 DT st e’ i
£ v el & M T Al
ing.the mlnn letter, EANSER

denled any bribery ever eccurring betwesn NUNT and
hinself, Be 2lzo denisd that ET transfexred 0125.000
to the stock Troker in MAMSIN's mame as alleged in the
fettesr, HEANSEN sald that ths wire transfer of funis
sent from the Pirst National Bank im Focatello, :ldab.
to Cargill Investors, Chicago, mm, and back and
thltwﬂniraprtrmluwlvﬁ. sald

m labeled as "preposterous” the statemant
in the extortion letter that the purpose of the ixribe
was to secure his support in HUNT's bid for a silver mine
4n ¥dahe, According to HANSEM, the silver mine owned
by NUNT was not located im his district, Purthermore,
HUNT acquired the silver mine hron his wife purchncd
g"l. silver, .

HUSNT concluded that he @id in het. d.chn
the profit derived from the -I..‘I.m investment on his
1979 tax ntm-

'.". - e ..

d o,
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BRIEFING BOOK EX. 5

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

R — 9/29/01,. + ¥,
. = X ¢ - o
":i'—’ 7 GEORGE VERNON FANSEN, United States Congress- ’: RN

san {:omd District-Idaho), 1125 Longworth Building, oo

Washington, D, C {(WDC), wvas interviewed at his business

office, Also present was JAMES MC KENNA, HANSER's attorney,
HANSEX provided the following {nformations

HANSEN advised that WELSON BUNKIR HUNT had
absolutely no influence, financial or otherwise, or any
Connection with the §125,000 loan he obtained from the
First Security Bank, Pocatelio, Idaho, in January, 1979,
to pay a margin call on his wife's silver investnmants,

Special Agent (SA) HOY asked HANSIDN vhy he
negatively answered Section I (B), Section III, and Section
V of his Financial Disclosure Statement for 197% when he
knew that his wife had purchased one huncred twenty-five
silver futures contracts in Jan + 1979, which were sub-
sequently liquidated for a net profit of $87,475, HANSEN
advised he had discussed this matter at length with his
attorneys JAMES MC KENNA and JOHN RUNFT, A consensus was
reache@ among them that because ot the Division of Property
vhich he and his wife had obtained in the State of Idaho
at least one year prior to his wife's gilver contract purchases,
any transactions solely entered into by his wife are not sub-
Ject to disclosure in the Financial Disclosure Statements,

SA HOY asked HANSEN why he ansvwered Section IV
of his Financial Disclosure Statement for 1979 showing a
Category C ($15,001-$50,000) for the Firast Security Bank
when he has alreacy admitted obtaining a $125,000 loan from
that bank in January, 1979, to pay his wife's margin call,
HANSEN advised he €id not disclose the $125,000 loan for
two reasons, Firstly, the loan was obtained on his vife's
behalf, Secondly, the loan was actually more an overdraft
than an actual loan, There was no written loan agreement and
the transaction was consumated so rapicly that it was really
usage of a line of credit more than an actual loan,

. 9/24/81 __Washington, D, C. rue s WIG 58-1879

SAS THOIAS S. HOY and

ov__ROBZRT Ju KIRWAN, JRe_ _ __ TSH:kio Oste 9/28,/81

Thn o neither ner I of tha FBI. 1t is the property of the FBI ang o loaned 1o your agency,
«f and its conlents are not 1o be distribuled oulnige your sgency,
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U.S. Department of Justice

BRIEFING BOOK E€X.

RHW :mer

Washington, D.C. 20530

James L. Lyons, Esq.

Kellogg, Williams & Lyons

1919 Pennsylvania Avenue, N. W.
Washington, D. C. 20006

Dear Mr. Lyons:

I am writing to confirm the.following agreement that
has been reached between the government and your client,
Arthur G. Emens, III:

1. Mr. Emens shall plead guilty in the
District of Columbla to the information that
was filed in the Northern District of Texas
and with which he stands charged (one count
of Blackmail, 18 U.S.C. § 873, carrying with
it .2 maximum penalty of one-year lamprisonment
and a fine of not more than $2,000) and
thereafter cooperate with the government as
follows:

a. Subsequent to his guilty plea,
Mr. Emens shall submit to a complete
.debriefing with government agents in
" which Mr. Emens will respond fully and
truthfully to all inquiries by the -
agents;

b. Mr. Emens shall testify fully
and truthfully in the grand jury 1n the
‘Distrlct of Columbia as to all matters
within hls knowledge and relevant to
thg ongoing grand jury investigation;
an

¢. Mr..Emens shall testify fully
and truthfully at . any and all eriminal
proceedings that may arise from the
ongoing grand jury investigation.
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2. In return for this consideration by
Mr, Emens, the government shall:

a. stand mute at sentencing;

b. not prosecute Mr. Emens for any
other United States Code vioclation in
connection with any and all activities
of Mr. Emens now known to the United
States Department of Justice, except.
as provided below.

It 1s understood by Mr. Emens that nothing in this
agreement shall be construed to protect him from a perjury
prosecution should he testify falsely under oath on any
occasion subsequent to this agreement. Likewise, nothing
in this agreement protects Mr. Emens from prosecution for
(1) criminal acts that he may commit in.the future or (2)
criminal acts that. he has committed in the past that are
not covered by this agreement, including prosecution for
criminal tax violations.

There are no other promises, undertakings or under-
standings between Mr. Eméns and the government that relate
to this plea agreement.

United States District Co}af’ ) Since rely,
for the District of Columiia

A TRUE COPY @QAA Y W&W
Reid H. Weingarteh, Attorney

MES F. DAVEY, CLERK
JARIES f. DAVEY, BLEZ Public Integrity Section
/ Criminal Division

By

Prmite Clerk

I have read this agreement and carefully reviewed every
part of it with my attorney. I understand it and I
voluntarily agree to it.

. W) | 2 g2~

I am Mr, Emens' attorney. I have carefully reviewed every
part of this agreement with him. To my knowledge, his de-
cision to enter into this agreement is an informed and
vcluntary one, '

By ('Lﬂwo./’%ﬂm- S-29=81

JAQ;S L. LYONS DATE
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LT U.D. pepariment of Justice
<

‘BRIEFING BOOK EX. /

RHW:mer

Weshingion, D.C. 20530

James L. Lyons, Esq.

Kellogg, Williams & Lyons
© 1919 Pennsylvania Avenue, N. W.
.Washington, D..C. 20006

Re: United States v. Arthur G. Emens, III

%, -

Dear Mr. Lyons:

Because of your representation that your client
Arthur G. Emens, III will file amended tax returns
reflecting all of his commodities trading at Ming
Commodity Services, this office will discontinue its
investigation into Mr. Emens' commodities trading at
this time. You understand, of course, that the plea
agreement between the government and Mr. Emens does
not affect any right of the United States to proceed
against Mr. Emens either criminally or-eivilly for
tax violations.

Sincerely,

o H. U gunspain

Reid H. Weingarten, "Attorney
Public Integrity Section
Criminal Division

United States Distriet Cutie
for the District of Columbis
A TRUE COPY

JAVES F. DAVEY, CLERR

Powy © 0
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) United Sictes Tictriot Crone,
) . L the Districrof Colwbia_ _ _ _ _ _ _.

w
[
a

CEFENDANT
Lemha S e UL BaTKET HO. FLEZ:QW.____,
et 5 - m e P g
JoRak E." -
In t== prese=se of the atiosnes for tht;mnmu - =0 Cav VED
1*: ¢zfendznt 2pperared i petson on this date -
COUNSEL L_JWITHOUT COUNSEL  Howewr the count adrsed gefendant of sight 10 counsel and ssked whether Gefendant desied 1o
have COUnSM BpPOINLET by 52 COUM ang the defi waived of counsel.
OO WITHOOUNSEL L o JEDES L IPME o o e e e e e e e e = ————
[Mame of counsel)

S GUILTY, and the court bring satisfed at L—INOLD comtuneuz L___INOT GUILTY
RLEA theze is a factual basis for the plea,

_——-\ bt NOT GUILTY. Defendant is discharged
There being a Tinding/verdict of E

" Defendant has been convicted as charged of the offense(s) of ,
FIAINE & L 18 USC 873-Blasicoail :

- . - - " - ; L
—_— mm.uummmmmum*mﬂm Becsuse nosufficient Gwsetoth  many
-nm-m.mmﬂumnm,mmmutmmu:wnu=mlm¢e¢mm=hrm. oty
hereby commitied to ohe custody of the A v G 1 e+ his P for a pencd of
IT IS ADJUDGED that the defendant is hereby commitred to the custody of
sentence | Dhe Attomey General or i -z’hoﬂzd wfaraperiodofm(l)
oR pmaﬂminchem:tnf 000.00 is izposed. The execution of both
saosaTIon {BUSPEnded and the defendant piuﬂmmvblﬁmfmamiodofﬂmem}

OADER ymwoul:hefoum;muﬂ

1. That he cbey all local, state, and federal las;

2.” '!hath:mplywiﬂ:thmsmd of the
uglﬂtims prebation

SPECIAL
CIEDITIONS 3. That he contribute seventy-five (?S)hauntoamm:ysuvine
nng'mw program during the first year of the probationary period;
4. That he contimee in therapy for as long as necessary;
5. That he peke no attempt to contact any menber of the Hnt faxily
nremglmu,wwsuﬁuofﬁwssempt ﬂw.@uoamsel.
Tape IL61-82; 221-633.
&”.mm"."' Ir 222005 10 the spesial cor of showe. it is hrrety crdored (531 the geneerl conditioss ©° SIOTLan eri Lt - 2
39'-':":*5'3 T o8 ¢ 3¢ Of t50s jaSmRer] b: rapoUE, The Cowl mav €'2nie th, COMEHIORS Ll F1IDut,uN. 1EZ4€ 4* EVIENZ L FELSS O :
PROATION | s o e e horink 1 DTOeuion pare 0 P10M Da1O8 OF € LG1) PUrElid S fam, s wr- 4 ortanf 230

PP —
T lw-ﬂl&bﬂﬂ&‘m g egomminis,

- LR L - S A L T
SoanuTRERT . )
RECOULER: . JAMES F. DAVEY, CLERK - -
DTN . - A
BICHEDRY }
| IEELLFE N -Th L !

BS e

- uly 27, 1922
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

BRIEFING BOOR EX. ¢

INTERVIEW OF

GEORGE VERNON HANSEN
and
CONNIE CAMP HANSEN

Thursday, June 17, 1982

Longworth House Office Building
) Room 1625
Washington, D.C.

PRESENT:

REID H. WEINGARTEN, ESQ.,

JAMES M. COLE, ESQ.,

Special Attorneys

United States Department of Justice

THOMAS HOY, AGENT
Federal Bureau of Investigation

JAMES McKENNA, ESQ..,
Staff Assistant
To Representative George Vernon Hansen

American. Reporting Services, Inc,
'].ﬂ:' 30331850
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MR, WEINGARTEN: It is June 17th, 11:00 a.m. Here
present are Congressman George Hansen of Idaho Falls, at 1125
Longworth. Present here, Reid Weingarten, Department of Justice:
Jim Cole, Department of Justice; Tom Hoy, F.B.I.; Congressman
Hansen, Mrs. Hansen and Mr. McKenna, who is, I understand,
on the staff of Congressman Hansen. He is also representing
Congressman Hansen for this purpose.

We are here pursuant to a reguest by the Department
of Justice to conduct interviews with the hope that they would
advance the investigation that began when Congressman Hansen
and an attorney for ‘Nelson Bunker Hunt brought a blackmail
letter to the Department of Justice on April 6, 1981.

For your edification, pursuant to you bringing that
letter, of course, we began an investigation into the blackmail.
It took longer than we had hoped. There were some complica-
tions. There was work done in the Grand Jury, and there was
some looking at records overseas, but as you must know by now,
a month ago, or last month an individual named Arthur Emens
pled guilty to blackmail in the District of Columbia, and will
be sentenced next month,.

Obviously, you've seen the letter, The letter con-
tains an allegation that there was wrong-doing between you and
Nelson Bunker Hunt, and we are duty bound, of cou¥se, to follow

up on that once we have completed the blackmail investigation.

American Reparting Services, Joc

202) 3938181
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That is what we are doing. We concluded that. Perhaps it's
best now if we deal with you directly and hear what you have
to say about this particular transaction.

So with that, I think we're ready to begin, unless
you have any questions you would like to ask of us.

CONGRESSMAN HANSEN: I think that's fine.

MR, WEINGARTEN: One of the things that would help
us is to be able to reconstruct as best we can precisely what
happened in January of '79. As you've stated, memories cloud
over the years. In the end, if in fact you have available
telephone records from your office and from your home back in
January of '79 and even December of '78, they would be most
helpful. In addition, I don't know if you keep your sign-in
sheets back in December of '78 and January of '79, but they
would be helpful as well. Now, this would be purely voluntary;
I should say that whatever decision you make, we have available
to us the subpoena route, and I'm sure you're familiar with the
subpoena route of the House, and we in fact issued a subpoena
prior to you volunteering to have this interview. Now, we will
put that on hold, and it is our preference that it is voluntarg
compliance, but I will leave that with you, and perhaps at
the end of the interview we can discuss this further.

We know that Mr. Hunt received the b}ackmail letter
on Tuesday, March 31, 1981, and we know that you and Ivan

Erwin, and I guess Mr. McKenna came too, brought it to the

American Reporting Services, Inc
(202) 3938181




185

A e15r Arroery Ouaas, w JIBIT B
Gt Oivrmce ATTACHMENT &Y MEMORANDUM

. @]cpnrlmmﬁ of FJusiice
Iaatingtom 20520 F ' L E D

JAR 10 175 .
' APR 24'1975
Honorable Wayne L, lays

Chairman, Committee On Housec " JAMES F. pAvey Clerk
' Administration !
Suite H-326, U.S. Capitol
Washington, D.C,

REIETING B0k EX O

Dear Mr, Chairman:

Reference is made to your letters of August 21, 1274,
and geptember 23, 1974, in connection with the referral to
the Attorney General by the Clerk of the House of Representa-
tives on August 20, 1974, of the matter concerning Congressman-
Elect George V. Hansen.

As you know, the several areas of possible violations
reported by the Clerk of the House have been the subject of
extensive investigation and evaluation by this Department.
Our review of this matter is substantially completed. This
status report is being made at this time in view of the
continuing interest expressed by your Committee in this in-
vestigation.

On the basis of the known information in this matter, it
is anticipated that prosecution will be declined on all aspects
of the investigation except one or more possible misdemeanoxr
violations of Title III of the Federal Election Campaign Act
of 1971, which would involve the manner in which the candidate'’s
reports were filed, Our ‘final prosecutive evaluation of these
reporting and disclosure violations is now in progress. For
your information, it is not presently anticipated that the re-
maining investigation will alter the tentative views expressed
herein.

F

S
{

i
\]c -’:-rvf (_/. /']4';1';.4‘4

/
A
JOIIN C, KEENEY
Acting fg.ésistq.nt Attorney ' General

ncgfely: l]

CC: Honorable William Dickinson
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BRIEFING BOOK EX. /7

1214 FEDERAL REPORTER, 2d SERIES

$200 cash deposit. Monday, May %0, was &
holiday. '

Our reading of the record peérsuades us
that agent Horn deliberately delayed ar-
resting Jernigan until a time when, as he
well knew, Jernigan would not be able to go
before a magistrate, have bail reset, and be
released. We deplore this kind of behavior,
and its repetition may lead us to invoke the
drastic remedy, dismissal of the indictment,
that Jernigan asks us to invoke,

The magistrate who heard the motion to
dismiss made no finding as to whether Horn
deliberately timed the arrest to assure that
Jernigan would spend three days in jail.
He concluded that the delay was not unrea-
sonable, 2 conclusion that we have some
difficulty in accepting. He also found that
no statements were made by Jernigan dur-
ing the delay that could be used against
him. Jernigan points to no prejudice other
than the fact that he spent three days in
juil. We think that to vacate Jernigan's
conviction and dismiss the indictment would
be too drastic a remedy in this case and we
decline to invaoke it.

Affirmed.

o %mmasvstu

George V. HANSEN and Connie Hansen,
husband and wife,
Plaintiffs-Appellants,

¥.

Melvin MORGAN and Nate Morgan
Jewelers of Pocatello, Inc., an Idsho
Corporation, Defendants-Appellees.

No. 76-1636.

United States Court of Appeals,
Ninth Circuit.
Aug. 18, 1978,

As Amended on Denial of Rehearing
Sept. 27, 1978.

Political candidate brought Fair Credit
Reporting Act action against persons who

had obtained a credit report on the candi-
date at the behest of one of his opponents.
The United States District Court for the
District of Idaho, Russell E. Smith, Chief
Judge, 405 F.Supp. 1318, granted summary
judgment in favor of defendants and politi-
cal candidate appealed. The Court of Ap-
peals, James M. Carter, Circuit Judge, held
that: (1) provision of the Fair Credit Re-
porting Act imposing criminal lizbility on
persons who obtain reports under false pre-
tenses can provide a basis for imposing civil
liability on one who violates it; (2) the
report in question was a “consumer report,”
and (3) if the report had been obtained in
the manner alleged by the political candi-
date, it had been obtained under false pre-
tenses.

Reversed and remanded.

1. Federal Courts =617

Where complaint alleged that defend-
ants had violated specific subdivisions of a
statute and “other related” sections of the
statute and where they argued to the court
below the factors relevant to the applica-
tion of one of those other sections, the court
on appeal could consider the allegations of
violations of that other section even though
that section was not listed specifically in
the complaint as a basis for recovery.

2. Federal Courts #=611

Generally, a federal appellate court will
not consider an issue not presented below.

3. Federal Courts =755

Where the facts were fully developed
in the trial court and where the sole ques-
tion presented by allegation that there had
been a violation of a specific statute was
one of law, the reviewing court could con-
sider that claim even if it had not been
presented to the district court.

4. Mercantile Agencies o1

Report obtained by merchant, allegedly
for political purposes, from a credit bureau
which supplied the report in the expectation
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‘that the merchant would use it for purposes
consistent with the bureau's form member-
ship contract and consistent with the Fair
Credit Reporting Act was a “consumer re-
port” for purposes of the Act. Fair Credit
Reporting Act, § 603(d), 15 USCA.
§ 1681a(d).

See publication Words and Phrases
for other judicial constructions and

5. Mercantile Agencies =3

Provision of the Fair Credit Reporting
Act imposing criminal penalties on one who
obtains a consumer report under false pre-
tenses falls within the category of a “re-
quirement imposed under this subchapter”
for purposes of statute imposing civil liabili-
ty on persons who wilfully or negligently
fail to comply with the requirements of the
Act. Fair Credit Reporting Act, §§ 616,
617, 619, 15 U.S.C.A. §§ 1681n, 16810, 1681q.

6. Mercantile Agencies &=1

Standard for determining when a con-
sumer report has been obtained under
“false pretenses” will usually be defined in
relation to the permissible purposes of con-
sumer reports; obtaining a consumer re-
port in violation of the terms of the Fair
Credit Reporting Act without disclosing the
impermissible purpose for which report is
desired can constitute obtaining consumer
information under false pretenses. Fair
Credit Reporting Act, § 619, 15 US.CA.
§ 1681q.

See publication Words and Phrases
for other judicial comstructions and
definitions.

7. Mercantile Agencies =3

Persons who obtained a consumer re-
port on a political candidate allegedly not
for the purpose of extending credit but
rather for political purposes to assist a con-
gressional committee could not avoid liabili-
ty to the candidate for obtaining the con-
sumer report under false pretenses on theo-
ry that the report had been obtained to
evaluate the candidate’s fitness for employ-
ment as a public official and thus that the

report had been obtained for an “employ-
ment purpose.” Fair Credit Reporting Act,
§ 604(S)XB), 15 U.S.C.A. § 1681(3XB).

See publication Words and Phrases
for other judicial constructions and
definitions.

-8. Mercantile Agencies =1

Provision of the Fair Credit Reporting
Act imposing criminal liability on one who
obtains a consumer report under false pre-
tenses was intended to protect consumers as
well as consumer reporting agencies. Fair
Credit Reporting Act, § 619, 16 US.CA.
§ 1681q.

John L. Runft (argued), of Runft & Lon-
geteig, Boise, Idaho, for plaintiffs-appel-
lants.

William D. Olson (argued), of Racine,
Huntley & Olson, Pocatello, Idaho, for de-
fendants-appellees.

Appeal from the United States District
Court for the District of Idaho.

Before CARTER and TANG, Circuit
Judges, and KUNZIG,* Judge of the United
States Court of Claims.

JAMES M. CARTER, Circuit Judge:

This is an appeal from the district court’s
grant of summary judgment dismissing ap-
pellants’ suit for invasion of privacy
brought under the Fair Credit Reporting
Act (FCRA), 15 US.C. §§ 1681 et seq. Ap-
pellees Melvin Morgan and Nate Morgan
Jewelers of Pocatello, Inc. (hereafter some-
times referred to as “the Morgans”) obtain-
ed a consumer credit report on appellants
George and Connie Hansen for a purpose
allegedly not permitted by the FCRA. The
Hansens filed suit contending the act im-
poses a requirement on users of consumer
credit reports to comply with provisions of
the FCRA restricting the purposes for
which consumer reports can be furnished
and that the act provides a civil remedy for

* Honorable Robert L. Kunzig, Judge of the United States Court of Claims, sitting by desig-

nation.
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failure of the user to comply. “Phe district
court ruled that the requirements relied

upon by the Hansens apply only to consum-.

er reporting agencies and that none of the
requirements imposed on users of credit
reports had been violated by the Morgans.

The major question for review is whether
the criminal provision of the FCRA—15
US.C. § 1681q—provides a standard for
imposition of civil liability under the FCRA.
The Morgans contend this issue was never
raised below, foreclosing this court from
considering it on appeal. In addition, they
maintain that even if noncompliance with
the act's criminal requirements forms & ba-
sis of civil liability, the document at issue
on this appeal is not a “consumer report”
and thus their conduct is not governed by
the FCRA. We conclude (1) that the Han-
sens’ contentions are appropriate for deci-
sion on appeal; (2) that the FCRA governs
the Morgans’ conduct in this case; and (8)
that the FCRA authorizes a civil remedy
against a user of a credit report who fails to
comply with the act’s eriminal provision—
15 US.C. § 1681g. We reverse.

I. Facts.

This case grew out of a strenuous cam-
paign for the 1974 Republican candidacy for
the United States Congress in the Second
District of Idaho. Orval Hansen, the in-
cumbent congressman, was defeated in the
Republican primary election by appellant
George Hansen. Thereafter two 1daho citi-
zens filed complaints with the clerk of the
United States House of Representatives

1. George Hansen ultimately won his bid for the
congressional seat in the general election in the
fall of 1974. Subsequently he pled guilty to a
two count information charging violations of
the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, 2
US.C. §§ 434 & 441,

2. The Hansens allege a different purpose moti-
vated Melvin Morgan to obtain the credit re-
port. According to them even though George
Hansen had defeated Orval Hansen in the Re-
publican primary election, if George Hansen
could have been forced to resign or abandon
his nomination as the Republican candidate for
the congressional seat, Orval Hansen would
have been automatically designated as the suc-
ceeding nominee pursuant o 34-715(4) of the
Idaho Code. Thus, Morgan's conduct is assert-

36-201 0—84——13

582 FEDERAL REPORTER, 2d SERIES

alleging improper campaign financing pro-
cedures by George Hansen. This caused an
investigation of George Hansen by the
House Administration Committee, of which
incumbent Orva! Hansen was a member
until his term as Congressman expired.!

Judith Austin, who had filed one of the
above complaints, was a friend of Orval
Hansen. - She had a conversation with Or-
val Hansen in which it was discussed that a
credit report on George Hansen could be
interesting for what it might disclose about
his campaign financing. Therefore Austin
later telephoned one Rose Bowman. The
substance of Austin’s conversation with
Bowman is in part disputed, but it is agreed
that a credit report on George Hansen was
discussed and that Melvin Morgan was con-
sidered as someone who might be sble to
obtain such a report.

Appellee Melvin Morgan is the principal
stockholder and chief executive of appellee
Nate Morgan Jewelers of Pocatello, a cor-
poration. The corporation is a member of
the Pocatello Credit Bureau, entitled to re-
ceive credit reports from the Bureau. On
about August 10, 1974, Melvin Morgan re-
ceived a telephone call from Rose Bowman
which he construed to be a request for a
credit report on George Hansen. Morgan
contends he agreed to obtain the report
upon the belief that it was desired by Orval
Hansen to assist the House Administration
Committee’s investigation of George Han-
sen? Upon Melvin Morgan's request the
credit report was provided without question
by the Pocatello Credit Bureau® The re-

edly & “conscious political act of a volunteer,
and not that of a person proceeding upon the
belief that he was acting pursuant to a legal
request of = savernmental entity.”

3. The Pocatello Credit Sureau did not inquire
of Morgan about the reasons for which he
desired the report. Morgan simply identified
himself by name and number and made the
request. He sald, 127, Mel Morgan, 1 would
like a written report update on George V. Han-
sen.” The chief executive of the credit bureau
stated in his deposition that the burean does
not inquire of the purpose for which each re-
quest they receive [s made. Rather, the bureau
relies on the member’s compliance with the
provisions of the membership and service con-
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port was issued in the names of both
George V. Hansen and his wife, Connie. It
contained no information adverse to either
of them.

. When he received the report, Morgan de-
livered it personally to Orval Hansen's of-
fice in Washington D. C. Eventually the
report reached the House Administration
Committee.

Upon learning of the existence of the
credit report, George and Connie Hansen
filed suit against the Morgans and various
other parties involved in the obtaining of
the report. After extensive discovery, the
Hansens dropped their complaint against all
parties except the Morgans. Their amend-
ed complaint alleged that the Morgans, by
willfully or negligently failing to comply
with the requirements of § 1681b and
§ 1681e(a) “and other related Sections” of
the FCRA, unlawfully violated the Han-
sens' right to privacy. Damages were
sought under §§ 1681n and 168lc which
authorize civil causes of action for noncom-
pliance with the requirements of the act.

The Morgans moved for summary judg-
ment contending as a matter of law that
their conduct violated no provision of the
FCRA, leaving no basis from which a civil
suit based on the FCRA could be launched.
In an opinion which reviewed the require-
ments imposed by each of the noncriminal
provisions of the FCRA, the district judge
agreed with the Morgans and granted their
motion for summary judgment. The Han-
sens appeal.

IL  Justiciability.

[1] Initially the Morgans contend that
this court should be foreclosed from con-
sidering § 1681q as a basis of civil liability
for their conduct because the Hansens did
not rely on it below and cannot raise it for
the first time on appeal. However, this
contention too narrowly construes the rec-
ord. In their amended complaint the Han-
sens alleged that the Morgans invaded their
privacy by “willfully or negligently failing

tract, which requires users to seek information

only for purposes permitted by the FCRA.
These purposes are enumerated both in the

to comply with the requirements of Sections
1681b, 1681e(a), and other related Sections
of 15 U.S.C. 1681 . . In their op-
position to summary judgment the Hansens
argued that under §§ 1681n and 16810 the
Morgans were liable for failure to comply
with § 1681b. As explained in section IV,
infra, § 1681b states requirements that of-
ten will form the measuring stick of when
§ 1681q has been violated. The essence of
the Hansens’ argument was directed at the
same concerns reached by § 1681q. If noth-
ing else, the Hansens' general reliance on
“other related Sections of 15 U.S.C. 1681"
when coupled with their argument of the
factors relevant to application of § 1681q
sufficiently posed the issue of the applica-
bility of § 1681q below to allow this court to
reach it on appeal.

[2] Moreover, even if we concluded the
issue of the relationship between § 1681q to
civil liability under the FCRA was not prop-
erly raised below, we still would not be
precluded from reaching it. Generally a
federal appellate court will not consider an
issue not passed upon below. Singleton v.
Wulff, 428 U.S. 106, 120, 96 S.Ct. 2868, 49
L.Ed.2d 826 (1976); United States v. Patrin,
675 F.2d 708, 712-713 (9 Cir. 1978). How-
ever, as we held in United States v. Patrin,
supra, this rule is not without its excep-
tions. One of the exceptions recognized in
Patrin is that when “the issue conceded or
neglected in the trial court is purely one of
law and either does not affect or rely upon
the factual record developed by the parties,
[citations omitted], the court of appeals
may consent to consider it.” United States
v. Patrin, suprs, at 712,

[3) Here the parties fully developed the
facts below. The factual issue critical to
our holding—whether the Morgans had
obtained the credit report for reasons not
permitted by the FCRA—was hotly disput-
ed and the subject of extensive discovery.
The sole aspect of that issue not treated
below was the relationship of the criminal

FCRA and in the bureau’s membership con-
tract.
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provision, 15 U.S.C. § 1681q, to the provi-
sions creating civil liability for noncompli-
ance with the act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 168In &
168lo. This is purely a legal issue, the
injection of which would not have caused
the Morgans to develop new or different
facts or to advance an alternative legal
theory in their defense. Accondingly, if the
issue had not been raised adequately below,
we would exercise our discretion to consider
it upon appeal.

IIl. Applicability of the FCRA.

{4] Before the trial judge the Morgans
contended the credit report obtained on the
Hansens was not a “consumer report” with-
in the meaning of the FCRA. Implicitly, at
least, the trial judge rejected this conten-
tion by reaching the merits of the Hansens'
claim. Nevertheless, on appeal the Mor-
gans repeat their contention as an alterna-
tive ground for affirming the trial court's
ultimate holding. This effort is unavailing
because the trial judge was correct in treat-
ing the credit report as a “consumer report”
as defined in the FCRA.

Section 1681a(d) of Title 15 defines “con-
lumer report” to be:

any written, oral, or other

oommumutmn of any information by a

consumer reporting agency bearing on a

consumer’s credit worthiness, credit

‘standing, credit capacity, character, gen-

‘eral reputation, - personal characteristics,

or mode of living which is. used or expect-

ed to be used or collected in whole or in
part for the purpose of serving as a fac-
tor in establishing the consumer's eligibil-
ity for (1) credit or insurance to be used
primarily for personal, family, or house-
hold purposes, or (2) employment pur-
poses, or (8) other purposes authorized
under section 1681b of this title. * *”

(Emphasis added.)

The credit report issued on the Hansens
in this case falls directly within this defini-
tion. Since the Pocatello Credit Bureau
knew nothing of the Morgans’ real reason
for requesting the report, it - must have sup-
‘plied this information with the expectation
that the Morgans would use it for purposes

$82 FEDERAL REPORTER, 24 SERIES

consistent. both with the FCRA and with
the Bureau's form membership contract
which closely correlated with the restric-

tions in the act. And unleas the Buresu

was generally collecting such information
for purposes not permitted by the FCRA, it
must have collected the information in the
report for use consistent with the purposes
stated in the act. There has been no sug-
gestion otherwise. Accordingly, the credit
report is (1) a written communication of
information (2) by a consumer reporting
agency (3) bearing on the Hansens’ credit
worthiness, credit standing or credit capaci-
ty (4) which was both expected to be used,
and collected in whole or in part, for the
purpose of establishing the Hansens' con-
sumer eligibility for credit transactions. As
such it is & consumer report under the
FCRA.

IV. Civil Liability under the FCRA.

Section 1681h(e) of Title 15 limits civil
liability under the FCRA as follows:

“(e) Except as provided in sections
1681n and 16810 of this title, no consumer
may bring any action or proceeding in the
nature of defamation, invasion of priva-
cy, or-negligence with respect to the re-
porting of information against any con-
sumer reporting agency, any user of in-
-formation, or any person who furnishes
information to a consumer reporting
agency, based on information disclosed
pursuant to section 168lg, 1681h, or
1681m of this title, except as to false
information furnished with malice or
willful intent to injure such consumer.”
(Emphasis added.)

The information upon which the Hansens
based their suit seems to have been dis-
closed pursuant to sections 1681g and 1681h,
but the Hansens make no contention that
any information in-the credit report obtain-
ed about them was false, The district
judge specifically found there was 'no false
information contained in the report. Thus
any liability of the Morgans to the Hansens
must be predicated on either § 1681n or
§ 1681o.
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These sections create civil lability for
willful (§ 1681n) or negligent (§ 168lo)
noncompliance by a consumer reporting
agency or user of information who fails to
comply with “any requirement imposed un-
der this subchapter with respect to any
consumer . . ..”% If the Morgans
have negligently or willfully failed to com-
ply with any “requirement” imposed by the
FCRA on users of credit information, they
can be held liable by the Hansens.

The crucial issue is what constitutes “any
requirement imposed under this subchap-
ter” for purposes of § 1681n and § 168lo.
The district court apparently concluded enly
the noncriminal provisions of the FCRA
state “requirements” for purposes of civil
liability under the act. The opinion below
reviewed each of the noneriminal provisions
of the act which regulate conduct, conclud-
ing that no provision which applies to users
of credit information, as opposed to con-
sumer reporting agencies, had been viclated
by the Morgans. No mention was made of
the criminal provision—§ 1681q. See Fian-
sen v. Morgan, 405 F.Supp. 1318 (D.Idaho
1976). .

[5] However, we conclude § 1681q does
state a “requirement imposed under this
subchapter”. 156 U.S.C. § 1681g provides:

4. These provisions read, respectively:

§ 168In Civil liability for willful noncompli-
ance

“Any consumer reporting agency or user of
information which willfully fails to comply
with any requirement imposed under this
subchapter with respect to any consumer is
liable to that consumer in an amount equal to
the sum of—

(1) any actual dameges sustained by the
consumer as a result of the failure;

(2) such amount of punitive damages as
the court may allow; and

(3) in the case of uny successful action to
enforce any liability under this section, the
costs of the action together with reasonable
attorney’s fees as determined by the court.”
§ 168lo Civil liability for negligent noncom-
pliance

“Any consumer reporting agency or user of
information which is negligent in falling to
comply with any requirement imposed under

“Any person who knowingly and will-
fully obtains information on a consumer
from & consumer reporting agency under
false pretenses shall be fined not more
than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than
one yesr, or both.”

This section requires that users of consumer
information refrain from obtaining such in-
formation from credit reporting agencies
under false pretenses. Ita violation there-
fore, forms a basis of civil liability under
either § 1681n or § 16810.

[6,77 'The standard for determining
when a consumer report has been obtained
under false pretenses will usually be
defined in relation to the permissible pur-
poses of consumer reports which are enu-
merated in 15 US.C. § 1681b* This is
because & consumer reporting agency can
legally issue a report only for the purposes
listed in § 1681b. 1If the agency is comply-
ing with the statute, then a user cannot
utilize an account with a consumer report-
ing agency to obtain consumer information
for a purpose not permitted by § 1681b
without using a false pretense.

We hold that obtzining a consumer report

-in violation of the terms of the statute

without disclosing the immpermissible pur-
pose for which the report is desired can

this subchapter with respect to any consum-
er is liable to that consumer in an amount
equal to the sum of—

(1) any actuai damages sustained by the

. consumer as a result of the failure;

{2) in the case of any successful action to
enforce any lisbility under this section, the
costs of the action together with reasonable
attorney’s fees as determined by the court.”

5. This provision reads:
§ 1681b Permissible purposes of consumer

reports

“A consumer reporting agency may furnish
a consumer repost under the following cir-
cumstances and no other:

(1) In response to the order of a court
having jurisdiction to issue such an order.

(2) In accordance with the written instruc-
tions of the consumer to whom it relates.

(3) To a person which it has reason to
believe—

(A) intends to use the information in con-
nection with a credit transaction involving
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constitute obtaining consumer information
under {alse pretenses, and that the facts in
this case demonstrate that the consumer
report was 30 obtained.$

This construction of the FCRA is not only
consistent with the intent of Congress as
revealed by the explicit langusge of
§ 1681n, the legislative history, and the
stated purpose of the Act, but also comports
with Supreme Court precedent relating to
civil liability based on criminal provisions of
federal statutes in general. When intro-
ducing the Fair Credit Reporting Bill in the
Senate, Senator Proxmire stated that the
bill would require:

“. . . that credit bureaus have in

effect procedures for guaranteeing the

confidentiality of the information they
collect and that no such information be
released to moncreditors such as govern-
mental investigative agencies without the
express consent of the person invoived.”

114 Cong.Rec. 24902 (1968). See Belshaw

v. Credit Bureau of Prescott, 392 F.Supp.

1856, 1360, n. 4 (D.Ariz.1975).

As explained, § 1681q extends to users of
information the requirement that they re-
frain from obtaining consumer information
for such impermissible purposes.

The declared purpose of the FCRA is to
assure that “consumer credit, personnel, in-
surance and other information” is collected,
disseminated and used in & manner which
will protect the interest of the consumer in
“confidentiality, accuracy, relevancy, and
proper utilization of such information

. .." 15U.8.C. §1681(b). The princi-
ple mechanum for accomplishing this goal
is the regulation of reporting of consumer
information by consumer reporting agen-
cies. But requirements were also placed on

the consumer , . . and involving the
extension of credit to, or review or collection
of an account of, the consumer; or

(B) intends to use the information for em-
ployment purposes; or

(C) intends to use the information in con-
nection with the underwriting of insurance
involving the consumer; or

(D) intends to use the information in con-
nection with a determimation of the consum-
er's eligibility for a license or other benefit
granted by a governmental instrumentality
required by law to consider n applicant's
financial responsibility or status; or

users of credit-information. This was nec-
essary because the objectives of the act
could be defeated if users could obtain in-
formation ‘from consumer reporting agen-
cies under false pretenses with impunity.
Even consumer reporting agencies acting in
complete good faith cannot prohibit illicit
use of consumer information if users are
not bound to obtain consumer reports only
for permissible purposes, Section 1681q is a
response to this concern.

Finally, the Supreme Court, when faced
with claims for civil damages based on im-
plication from penal provisions of various
federal statutes, has recognized that the
intention of Congress often cannot be effec-
tively implemented without both civil and
criminal remedies. The Court has stated:

“In those cases {Texas & Pacific R. Co. v.

Rigsby, 241 U.S. 33, 86 S.Ct. 482, 60 L.Ed.

8% (1916); J. L Case Co. v. Borak, 371

US. 426, 84 S.Ct. 1555, 12 L.Ed.2d 423

(1964)) we concluded that criminal liabili-

ty was inadequate to ensure the full ef-

fectiveness of the statute which Congress
had intended. Because the interest of
the plaintiffs in those cases fell within
the class that the statute was intended to
protect, and because the harm that had
occurred was of the type that the statute
was intended to forestall, we held that
civil actions were proper. That conclu-
sion was in accordance with a general
rule of the law of torts. See Restate-
ment (Second) of Torts § 286." Wyan-

dotte Co. v. United States, 389 U.S. 191,

202, 88 S.Ct. 379, 886, 19 L.Ed.2d 407

{1967).

Here the case is even stronger for there is
no need to imply a civil remedy. § 1681n
explicitly authorizes one.

(E) otherwise has a legitimate business
need for the information in connection with a
business transaction involving the consum-
er.”

8. The Morgans assert that their purpose in ob-
taining credit report on George Hansen was to
assist the House Administration Committes
evaluate Hansen's fitness for employment as a
public official. They argue this is a permissible
“employment purpose™ under 15 US.C.
-§ 1681b(3XB). we refuse to extend the defini-
tion of “employment purpose” to encompass
the Morgans' conduct in this case.
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[8] The Morgans reply that § 1681q was
not intended to protect the consumer, but
rather the -onsumer reporting agency
which is required by the statute to institute
reasonable reporting procedures to protect
the privacy of consumers. Thus they cun-
tend a consumer has no standing to sue
under it. However, the FCRA was de-
signed in whole and in virtually each part
to protect not consumer reporting agencies,
but consumers themselves. If § 1681q helps
consumer reporting agencies comply with
the act, that result is secondary to the uiti-
mate protection which compliance by users
as well as consumer reporting agencies
gives to the consumer.

We hold that § 1681q states an explicit
“requirement imposed under this subchap-
ter [tke FCRAJ)". Noncompliance with
§ 1681q thereby forms a basis of civil liabili-
ty under § 168ln. The Hansens' claim
states a valid cause of action under these
sections and there were sufficient issues of
fact to withstand summary judgment.

V. Conclusion.

The judgment of the district court is re-
versed and remanded for a trial.

C) gmmnsmn

UNITED STATES of America, Appellee,
v.

Frederick Lyle McINTYRE, Appellant.

UNITED STATES of America, Appeliee,
"
Dale Irwin VanBUSKIRK, Appeilant,
Nos. 77-3623, 77-3716.

United States Court of Appeals,
Ninth Cireuit.

Sept. 25, 1978.
Rehearings Denied Nov. 13, 1978.

Defendants were convicted before the
United States District Court for the District

of Arizons, Mary Anne Richey, J., of violat-
ing and conspiring to violate Title III of the
Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets
Act of 1968, and they appealed. The Court
of Appesals, Goodwin, Circuit Judge, held
that: (1) assistant chief of police had rea-
sonable expectation of privacy in his office;
(2) trier of fact could find from all the
evidence that defendants “willfully” partic-
ipated in endeavor to “bug” assistant chief
of police's office, and (8) whether assistant
made or received any telephone ecalls during
life of “bug” was immaterial where evi-
dence proved that defendants did cause or
procure others to try to intercept conversa-
tions.

Affirmed.

1. Telecommunications ¢=>495

In determining whether violation of Ti-
tle III of the Omnibus Crime Control and
Safe Streets Act of 1968 occurred, inquiry
was whether communications overheard
were uttered by person who had subjective
expectation of privacy that was objectively
reasonable. 18 US.C.A. §§ 2510(2), 2511 et
seq.

2. Searches and Seizures ®=7(1)

Police officer is mot, by virtue of his
profeasion, deprived of protection of the

Constitution; this protection extends to .

warrantless eavesdropping to overhear con-
versations from official’s desk and office.

3. Master and Servant =54

Established regulatory scheme or spe-
cific office practice may, under some cir-
cumstances, diminish employee’s reasonable
expectation of privacy.
4. Telecommunications #4953

Evidence that other, unconsented,
“bugging” may have occurred within police
department did not create regulatory
scheme or specific office practice that pre-
cluded assistant chief of police from having
objectively reasonable subjective expecta-
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BRIEFING DOOR EX. /7 770585

Federal Election Comuission ﬁ DR ! Ci l"] F] = P‘

Office of General Caunsel

Advisory Opinion Section
1325 X Street, N.W. e 8 ’7
Washington, D.C." 20463 .-[.’.."':-i.-'-‘-'! HIPRUES & . -:“""_':"."":E

re: Reguest for Advisory Opinion

Gentlémm:

By this letter I am 5:questing an advisory opinioa as to
vhethel a federal office holder may, under certain cireurstances,
rzise personal funds by personal andfor mail solieitstion. It is
subritted that federal eifice holders should be a2fforded the mcans
to sujpplement their incene provided by rheir federal salary, if it
czn be done in 2 ceter thet will not iuflucnce or affect their
nonination or electiova 1o federal office.

Like persons in other professions, federal oifice holders lizve
the same needs for finmancial security.. They, too, zre subject lo
exiTsordinary personal finaneial burdens that can be impesed by such
things 25 heavy padical-expensesreselting from serjous illuess or
accident,.as financial loszes otczsioned by business reverses, and
2t college expenses of children, to name a few exzuples.  They shonld

be afforded 2 way to mount aa -eifort io overcome such probless and
attzin fipancial secerity.

Tiowever, if federal office holders are held to 2 stancard of
"persvnal gifts customarily received prior to candidacy” znd zre to
be severely Iimited in their receipt of honvrzriuvms and other extrs-
federal income, they have Jittle prospeet of ever overconing extra-

- ordinary personal exp or los while pursuing their czreers as
federal office holéders - unless they werz veal thy prior to candidacy.
‘There 'shovld be seme provision by which federal office holders of
madest means can overcone the burden of extraordirery personal expeases

and losses vhile continuing to serve Lha constitusney vhich elecied
them.
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All things considered, solicitation for personal denations would
appear to be the avcaue most compatible to civcumstances of federal office,
Clearly, allowance of extra - federal employment would not only take
avay time from public duties, but would lend itself to long-term,
continuing conflicts of interest and influence. Solicitation and receipt
of unconditional pifts would tend 1o aveid these problems. Of course,
there could be no denial that such personal gifts would be politically
votivated to a substantial degree. However, it is submitted that a
plan of solicitation can be devised vhich would substantially avoid
affecting or influencing the nomination or eluction pracess.

With reference to The Federal Election Carpaign Act of 1971, as
mended in 1974 and 1976, and with refercace to the propused Rules snd
Regulations published by the Federal Election Cormission in the Federal
Repister, Vol. 41, Ro. 166 on Auvgust 25, 1976, T respectfully request
an advisory apinion as to uvhether the following plan for solicitation
of personal funds rzy be 21loqed: .

(1) The personal funds would be solicited either in person or
bty mail. :

(2) 1In order to overcome the presvmption that the dorations
were contributions, ali solicitations for personal gifts
wonld be acconpanied or imaediately followed up by a
letier stating the purpose of the solicitation und
requesiing the donor to sign a card to be returned vith
the gift alfiraing such purpose of the gift. The statement
of purpere in the snlicitation leiter will he as follows:

“The prepnse of ihis rolieitaifon is 1o eltain jevesal
funds for (.22 of oifice Wolder) four his (her) pirsetal vse.
Funds obtained by this rolicitation will not be used for

the purpose of influencing any nosinetion or election #nd
will not Le uscd in any conpaign bY or in belmlf of (nane

of office holder) #nd will not e used by him (her) in zay
vay to proaoie or to maintain the officiel zctivities of
{name of office holder).”

The statemenr of affination of purpose and zrount of the gift
on ihe cxxd 1o be sizaed by the donor &nd returned with the gift will
be &5 follovws:

"1, the undersigned, hercby affirm that the purpuse of this gife

in the amount of §_____ _ _ is denated to (nane of office holder)

for his personal use only, and rhar tiis gift is not given to
influence any nonination or election or as a carpaign contribution

or for the purpose of prowoting or mainlzining the of ficizl sctivities
of (nane of office holder)."
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(3) Mo pifts will be solicited, or knowingly accepted, which
are prohibited by sections 114.2 and 115.2 of the propuscd
F.E.C. Rules and Regvlations.

(4) No such solicitation will be conducted during any one ycar
period prior to a general elcction.

(5) The solicitation effort will not be conducted or staffed
by persons on the office holdez's staff who are on the
federal payroll or by persons employed and paid by the
office holder or his campaign committee in the iis-diate
past canpaiyn. .

(6) The solicitation will not be conducted within the Congressicnal
District of the office holder nor would constituents be
kaowingly solicited.

() The solicitation cffort vill Le se)f-soppurt ing and will
repsy pereonal Ystart-vp" funds advenced by the oifice
holder for its operation.

(8) AN disburaiu=nts from gifis received will be paid out
solely for costs of the solicitation ¢ffort or to the
puvrsonal account of the office holder.

(9) As a2 condition to allouance of such solicitat ion for perscnel
funds, tha oifice holder will not rmave expenditures fromn
personal funds at day thee in the fulvie Tolloeing eo oeore - ot
of the velicitetion, An affidivit forenwrering foture use of
pereonal Tunds for enpenditures will be crccuted Ly the of fice
holder in a form zpproved andfor provided by the Federal Election
Cornission.

(10) As a condition to allowance of such solicitation for perscnal
funds, the proposed solicitaiion letter and return affitrsticn
card shall be subnitted to the Federal Election Cozadession
for zpproval.

(11) #n accounting of the solicitation cffort shall be Teported
to the Federal Election Cormission on a moathly basis or st
such other times as requested by the Comnizsion. The accounting
shall contain at least the following:

(a) The asount of each gift, the date of its receipt, und the
nare #nd &ddress of exch donor related to cach gifc.

(b) The amount of cach disbursement, the date of its payment,
the nane and address of the puyee, and the purpose of the
paymsnt if not rede to the personal account of the office
holder.
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The foregoing, private fund solicitation pl* .is submiited not
only for advisory inion as to its feasibility, _at for zdvice as
to vhat additional measures or changes might make it feasible, There
is no pride of auvthorship as to language or tesins intended. Tt is
only hoped that this request might point the way to a reasobable rlan
of relief from the economiec freeze imposed wpon federal office holgers.

In closing, I do have & special request. As the time facror of
the next election is less than ten months avay, I would appreciate”
your consideration of this request as soon as possible. Not only is
the preparation and iuplementation of a direct mail solicitation a,
tize consuming process, hut the follow-up mailings could casi 1y fa11
into next year (and would have to be foresone) unless we zre able to
begin the proposed solicitation almost immediately.

Thank you for your consideration.
Very touly yours,
GEOIGE HANSEN

. Mewher of Conpress

-

A

s,

15

"~
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tour” would probably not be viewed as “equal consideration” for
expenses paid by a sponscring organization. o

A similar philosophy of exempting expenses for participation in
an event is recognized in clause 3 of House Rule XLVIil, which ex-
cludes travel, lodging, and meals from caiculation of the honorari-
um paid for a speech or appearance. ‘

A separate question surrounds the reimbursement or payment of
similar expenses for the spouse of a Member, officer, or employee.
If a sponsoring organization pays the spouse’s expenses to attend
an event in which the Member participates, would those expenses
constitute a gift to the Member under clause 4 of Rule XLIII? Rule
XLIII does not specifically address this question. But as a matter of
precedent, Federal Election Commission regulations exclude pay-
ment of expenses for a spouse as a portion of the honorarium re-
ceived by a Member, officer, or employee. As a matter of policy, the
ability of the spouse to accompany a Member to such events has
many positive benefits. If House Rules are interpreted so as to pre-
vent reimbursement of a spouse's travel, food, and lodging ex-
penses, the incentive for Members to participate in meaningful pro-
grams will be diminished.

SUMMARY OPINION

A Member, officer, or employee of the House (and the individ-
ual’s spouse or another family member) may be paid or reimbursed
for- transportation, food, and lodging expenses when such expenses

-are directly associated with a conference, meeting, or similar event

- - in which the Member, officer, or employee substantially partici-

pates. Such reimbursements or payments aggregating $250 or more

“from-one ‘source would be ‘disclosed in accordance with the provi-

gizolns of section 102(2XC) or the Ethics in<Government Act (PL 95-
).

Apvisory OriNioN No. 3

SUBJECT

Applicability of House Rule XLIII, clause 4, to accel_rtance of free
transportation provided by air carriers on inaugural flights.

REASON FOR ISSUANCE

The Select Committee has been -requested to issue an advisory
ropinion on the propriety of Members, officers, or employees of the
-House of Representatives accepting free transportation provided by
air carriers on inaugural flights.

BACKGROUND

Commercial air carriers are authorized, under federal regula-
tions (18 CFR 223.8 and 399.38) and with the approval of the Civil
Aeronautics Board, to provide free transportation on “inaugural
Aflights” to invited' guests when a new route or new equipment is
introduced. Traditionally, the air carriers invite. Members and em-
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loyees of the House of Representatives, as well as officials of the
ecutive Branch, on such inaugural flights.

The applicable House Rule in this situation is Rule XLIII, clause
4, which provides, in effect, that a Member, officer, or employee of
the House of Representatives shall not accept gifts in any calendar
year aggregating $100 or more in value, directly or indirectly, from
any party with a direct interest in legislation before the Congress,
or from a foreign national.

The air carriers are subject to federal regulation, and thus are
deemed to have a direct interest in legislation before the Congress.
The question to be determined is whether an inaugural flight con-
stitutes a gift.

In the case of inaugural flights, the Member, officer, or employee
of the House does not appear to render any services of equal con-
sideration to the value of the flight, and therefore an inaugural
flight would appear to constitute a gift to the Member, officer, or
employee. If the value of the transportation provided on an inaugu-
ral flight exceeds $100, and the Committee assumes that such
would be the case in every instance, acceptance of such a gift
would be prohibited under Rule XLIII, clause 4.

The Committee recognizes that the definition of the term “gift”
for purposes of Rule XLIII, clause 4, might not include some situa-
tion where a trip or event is primarily intended for educational
purposes and is directly related to a Member’s or officer's or em-
ployee’s official duties. However, the Committee finds that inaugu-
ral flights, as traditionally defined, do not have sufficient educa-
tional value to ¢~clude them from the definition of a gift for pur-
poses of the intent of Rule XLIII, clause 4.

SUMMARY OPINION

Acceptance of free transportation provided by air carriers on in-
augural flights is prohibited under House Rule XLIII, clause 4.

Apvisory OriNioN No. 4

SUBJECT

Under House Rules, may a Member of the House or the spouse of
a Member solicit cash gifts of less than $100 for personal use
through a direct mass mailing?

REASON FOR ISSUANCE

A Member of the House has requested an advisory opinion as to
whether his proposal to solicit gifts of less than $100 for personal
use would be in violation of House Rule XLIII.

BACKGROUND

Rule XLIII, clause 4, prohibits acceptance of gifts aggregating
over $100 from “persons” havirg a direct interest in legislation
before the Congress. Since the proposal would solicit only gifts of
less than $100, it would not be in violation of clause 4.

A/ 'X3 M008B BNId3lNg
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However, Rule XLII, clause 7, a to have direct application
to the proposed plan to solicit gifts. Before March 3, 1977, Rule
XLIII, clause 7, read as follows:

A Merber of the House orfml::gresentqtives shall treat as
compaigr: contributions all p s from testimonial dinners
or other fund-raising events if the sponsors of such affairs do
not give clear netice in advance to the donors or participants
that the proceeds are intended for other purposes.

This provision was designed to deal with situations in which dona-
tions were given to Members under the mistaken notion that they
were to be used for campaign purposes when, in fact, they were
treated as personal gifts. Hence, language w?mted which speci-
fied that unless advance notice was given, p from fund-rais-
ing events could not be converted to personal use.

e House Commission on Administrative Review recommended
that proceeds from testimonial dinners and other fund-raising
events should not be allowed to be converted to personal use under
any circumstances. Effective March 3, 1977, H. Res. 287 amended
clause 7 to read simply:

A Member of the House of Representatives shall treat as
campaign contributions all proceegs from testimonial dianers
or other fund-raising events.

In a technical sense, then, the propriety of the proposal turns on
the interpretation of a “fund-raising event.” There was no legisla-
tive history defining the term fund-raising event when Rule XLIII
was adopted in 1968.

But in view of the widespread use of mass mailings to raise funds
(direct mail solicitation has become a principal fund-raising tech-
nique since 1968), it would appear that the proposal under consid-
eration constitutes a fund-raising event. In the age of computerized
mass mailings, it is unnecessary for people to gatner together in a
comlggn place on a particular date to constitute a “fund-raising
even

Additionally, Rule XLIII, clause 2, would appear tc have applica-
bility in this case. The provision states:

A Member, officer, or employee of the House of Repre-
sentatives shall adhere to the spirit and letter of the Rules
of the House of Representatives and to the rules of duly
constituted committees thereof.

A major thrust of the 9’!"{;'ov.riﬁlicnm contained in the new House
Rules adopted March 2, 1977, was to severely limit the potential for
Members to “cash in” on their positions of influence for personal
gain. Therefore, a limitation on outside earned income was pro-
posed and adopted. A proposal to abolish unofficial office accounts
was offered and adopted. A proposal to prohibit the conversion of
political funds to personal use was adopted. And the proposal dis-
cussed above to treat all proceeds from fund-raising events as cam-
paign contributions was also adopted. Therefore, it would appear
that a ‘Proposal to solicit funds for personal use would be cont
to the “spirit” of the House Rules adopted pursuant to H. Res. 287.
The final question concerns the propriety of a spouse raising
funds throug: mass mail solicitation for the benefit of the Member.
While ‘the Select Committee recognizes the basic independence of
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the spouse, the spouse under these circumstances would be acting
essentially on behalf of the Member. Thus, the Member would be
conducting indirectly the very activities he would be prohibited
from engaging in directly.

Consequently, the mass mail solicitation of funds by a spouse for
a Member’s use also appears to violate the “spirit” of House Rules.

SUMMARY OPINION

A direct mail solicitation by a Member of the House or the
spouse of a Member constitutes a “fund-raising event” for purposes
of House Rule XLIII, clause 7. Proceeds from a “fund-raising
event” for a Member of the House must be treated as “campai
contributions” and cannot be converted to personal use by the
Member. Therefore, any such attempt to raise funds for personal
use through a mass mailing would be in violation of House Rule
XLIH, clause 7. Additionally, any such activity would appear to be
contrary to the spirit of House Rules and, therefore, in violation of
House Rule XLIII, clause 2.

Apvisory OrinioN No. 5

SUBJECT

Use of campaign funds to pay for official expenses incurred prior
to March 3, 1977.

REASON FOR ISSUANCE

The Select Committee has received several inquiries regardm
the use of campaign funds to pay for official expenses incur
lii.({; to the effective date of House Rule XLIII, clause 6, and Rule

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

House Rule XLIII, clause 6, as amended on March 2, 1977, re-
stricts the use of campaign funds to bona fide campaign pur .
House Rule XLV, also adopted on March 2, 1977, prohibits the ac-
ceptance of private contributions to defray ordinary and neceasarz
expenses incurred in the operation of a congressional office. Bot
Rules changes became effective upon adoption.

Some Members committed excess campaign funds to pay for offi-
cial expenses incurred on or before March 3, 1977, the effective
date of the new Rules, but have not actually expended their cam-
paign funds to pay those debts. In such cases, the campaign funds
were contributed prior to the Rules changes and the expenses were
incurred before the adoption of the new Rules.

The amendment to Rule XLIII, clause 6, and new Rule XLV were
not intended to have an ex post facto effect. Therefore, the Select
Committee finds that use of campaign funds contributed prior to
the Rules changes to pay for official expenses incurred prior to
March 3 is permissible under the Rules.

House Rule XLV clearly prohibits Members who have incurred
official expenses either before or after March 8 from raising pri-
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March 14, 1977

The Honorable Richardson Preyer, M.C.

Chairman, the Select Committee on Ethics BRIEFInG BONK  €X. /5‘
2344 R.H.0.B.

Dear Mr. Chairman:

Pursuant to our recent conversation, I wish to formally advise you that through
the past two elections for Congress 1 have experienced an unusual degree of
personal attack by political opposition which has created for me and wy family
a considerable amount of legal, professional and other non-campaign expenses.

Being one of modest means and not having any significant outside source of
income in addition to my Congressional salary which is used to support a
large family and maintain my personal situation both in Washington and Idahe,
it is most difficult to-find the means to recoup from such extra perscnal
expenses which have been incurred.

1 therefore have openly atteipted to find a method which would not interfere
with my service to my constituents on a full time basis and not be in conflict
of interest for the position I hold.

1 have always been most concerned that my activities be legal and ethical.
Therefore 1 have outlined an inquiry to the Federal Election Commissicn to
determine a course of action which might be acceptable and forthright. I
believe the letter speaks for itself and emclose a copy for your information.
I would appreciate being advised if my proposal violates any laws, rules or
regulations in the area of vour jurisdiction.

My attorney has been actively involved in this matter in preparation ef the
letter and in preliminary discussions with appropriate officials of the F.E.C.
I have every reason to believe my request has been properly qualified and will
receive early and favorable consideration.

1 am convinced that my request adheres to the letter and spirit of the new
ethics code recently passed by the House but as a precaution and in a further
effort to conform to non-controversial guidelines, I wish to advise you that
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" no contribution of $luu or more will be solicited or accepted.

Again, I wish to point out my purpose is basically to gain reimbursement for
some of the large expenses pushed on me personally by political harassment
and dirty tricks which I have not previously included as regular campaigs
expenses. .

Thank you for yeour interest and assistance in this watter. I would appreciate
receiving an early reply und weloome your <o enls and suggestions,

Sincerely yours,

GEORGE HANSEXN
Meober of Congress

GVHs

P.S. For your information, the terminology (such as the word “exgenditure"}
in the letter to the F.E.C, is utilized according to definitions set
forth in the F.E.C. Act of 1971 as amended and proposed rules and
regulations as published.
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The Eonorable Richardson Prever, M.C. HMETES NG m gm /é

Chairman, the Select Comnittee on Ethics
2344 R.H.0.B.

Dear ¥Mr. Chairvren:

This is to supplenent previous correspondence regzrding my proposal to
solicit funds to recoup from serious personal losses caused by the unusual
Segree of personal attack 1 have experienced from political oppesition
during the past three years.

/s you are zusre, my plan vas found by the Federal Election Conmission to
have no conflict with Federal Election lavs or proposed regulations under
their jurisdiction. Further research has established that there is no
Teason to believe that there will be any conflict with laws snd regulations
s adninistered by other zgencies of the Federal governoent.

To further elsrify my situstion at this point for your puipeses 1 wish to
deal with the basic structure of the projesed solicitation in zy tehelf.

In this I an flexible in hopes of maintaining a conpletely legal and ethicel
pretore for myself personally and as a vecber of this great legislative
body.

I suggest that the known and accepted structure for solicitivg the pelitical
funding for elections can also be properly used for raising peretonal funds

as described $n ©y propeszl. By this 1 tesn the rersonal or wail solicitation
weuld be conducted either personally or in the alternative by a comzittee
cozposed of several persons not a part of oy congressional office stzff or
cenpaign orgenizetion,

In conjunction with the eleven point plan cleared vith the FEC, such a

comnittee would cperate entirely independent of ne in every respect. Fer
exenple, it would necesssrily have to obizin $ts cvn sced money end organizsticrz’
direction and conirol. The only redst jenehip 1 wovld have with the conzittee
would be that 1 would not sccept funds frox the coraittee unless it could

clearly demonstrate that 211 points of the FEC propesal and the vnder $100
limitation were adhered to. No funds would be accepted personally frovc meshers
of the cormittee or clcee relutives of those meabers.

36-291 O-—84——14
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1 have made every attempt to outline a workable proposal to allow merbers
of Congress the same rights and privileges as the average citizen enjoys —-
the right to protect hirself (or herself) and his (or her) family from
seriouvs financial hardship which can arise from circurstances not of his
(or her) own making.

¥o one else has to resrign from their pesition of employment to gain Jegitimate
relief, why should a member of Congress? 1 don't believe any citizen of this
nation believes that to be a2 necessary requirement for the office.

Any person has a right to basic financial survival, The question is how can

it be properly done in a sensitive position. 7T believe the direct way is
preferzble because it js the simplest and most accountzble. NKews accounts have
been freguent regarding the complications to the circurstances of public effice
holders vhen a spouse or other close family member pursues their own course.

And yet, that family has a right to financizl survival and should not be
peralized if one of them is publicly involved. Ny wife zcks me what would
bacoze of her and the children if I were to die suddenly with the lsrpe éebts
wve Lave incurred from the ugly aspects of pelities. What can 1 tell her,
vhat would you tell your spouse?

¥r. Chaircen, 1 sppreciate the interest and time devoted to this problem by
‘you &nd the mechers of the Cemmittee. 1 strongly wrge your positive action,
not only for my c«n relief, but for &ny vho are so uniortunate 25 to find
thenselves at scme future tire in similar circvsstences.

Sincerely,

GELORGE H-NSEN
Mexber of Conpress

GVEs
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BRIEFING BOOX €X. /7

MEMORANDUM OF PROPERTY SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS MEMORANDUM, executed this 30th day of Septem-
ber, 1977, by the parties hereto, of A PROPERTY SETTLEMENT
AGREEMENT, made and entered into on the 2lut day of June,
1977, by and between GEORGE V. HANSEN, hereinafter referred
to as "Husband™, residing in Pocatello, Bannock County,
Idaho; and CONSTANCE S. "CONNIE" HANSEN, hereinafter referred

to as "Wife", presently residing with Husband in Pocatello,
Bannock County, Idaho:;

WHEREAS, these parties were married on the 19th day
of December, 1952, in Malden, Dunclin County, Missouri, and
since that time have been and now are husband and wife; and,

WHEREAS, five children have been born the issue of

these parties, namely:

Steven G. Hansen, born October 3, 1953, now

age 23;

James V. Hansen, born December 20, 1954, now
age 22;

Patgicia S. Hansen, born Apri. 18, 1956, now
age 21;

William D. Hansen, born May 13, 1959, now
age 18;

Joanne Hansen, born April 25, 1960, now
age 17; and

WHEREAS, out of love and affection for each other,
because of the deep mutual respect for the position of the
other in their marriage, and out of a mutual desire to provide
for their children and to protect their family from economic
ruin, it has become necessary by reason of the personal economic
burdens caused these parties by malicious, illegal and improper
political attacks during the three-year period last past to
divide their community property between them and to otherwise

arrange and settle by mutual agreement, all present and future
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property rights, and to arrange for this disposition.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as fol-
lows:

1. In Qividing their community assets and liabil-
ities between them so as to constitute such assets and
liabilities as separate property, it is the purpose of these
parties to make an equal division between them as to net
value.

2. From the community property of these parties,
the Husband shall have as his sole and separate property,
free and clear of any right, title and interest of the Wife,
the following items:

(a) Earnings of the Husband, subject to a
separate maintenance to Wife in the sum of
$1,000.00 per month, or such other sum as the
parties may hereafter agree:

(b) Husband's United States Retirement
Fund, which presently amounts to the sum of
$8,735.75;

{c) United States House of Representatives'
Sergeant of Arms' account, having the present
value of $578.15;

{d) New York Life Insurance Company com-
mission agent residuals, presently amounting to
approximately $100.00 per year;

(e) Two whole life insurance policies with
Hew York Life Insurance Company on Wife's life
for $65,000.00, with Husband as beneficiary,
and which are subject to $6,000.00 loan indebt-
edness, therefore having little cash value;

{f) Funds in a checking account at the
Valley Bank, Pocatello, Idaho, in the amount of
$1,100.00;

(g) Husband's clothing and perscnal effects.

3. From the community proverty of these parties,
the Wife shall have as her sole and separate property, free
and clear of any right, title and interest of the Busband,

the following {+ems:
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All real property of these parties,

with improvements thereon, including, but not
limited to, the following:

1)

The real property and house situated

thereon located at 4700 38th Place North,
Arlington, Virginia, presently having an
appraised value of $155,800.00;

(2)

The real property and house situated

thereon, located at 730 Ada, Paragould,
Arkansas, presently having an appraised
value of $27,000.00;

(3)

The real property and building sit-

uate thereon, being the present site of
the Copy Cat business, located at 420
North Main Street, Pocatello, Idaho,
having a present value of §125,000.00;

{b)

A real property sales contract in

escrow for real property located in Tetonia,
Idahe, having the present value of $1,518.49;

(c)

The Copy Cat business located at 420

North Main Street, Pocatello, ldaho, znd pre-
sently worth $40,000.00, including inventory
valued at $8,000.00 and printing and other
equipment and furnishings having a value of
$18,822.00;

(a)

Loan accounts receivable in the pre-

sent amount of $7,500.00:

(e)

Office eguipment having the present

value of §5,000.00;

(£)

Household furnishings, fixtures and

appliances located in the Arlington, Virginia,
house, having the present value of $26,200.00;

(g) Household furnishings, fixtures and
appliances located in the Paragould, Arkansas,

house and in the Pocatello, Idaho, rented apart-
ment, having the present value of $5,500.00;

(h)

Tax refund presently due and owing for

the year 1576, having a value of approximately
$9,000.00;

(i)

Monies in bank, checking and savings

accounts located at the following listed banks,
which accounts were in the amounts stated as of

June 21, 1977:
(1) valley Bank, Driggs, Idaho ... § 2,100.00
{2) WMFT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT . 2,700.00
(3) Bank of ldaho, Pocatello, ID . 100.00
(4) First Security Bank, Pocatello

I1daho cavnans terenssssatannnn 105'91
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(5) First National Bank, Para-

gou!d, ATKANSAE ccsvccnssnsss 9§ 270.00
(6) Idaho State Bank, Glenns

Ferry, Idaho cc.ccvvcnnccnnns 660,00
(7) Arlington Trust Co., Arling-

ton, Virginia ....c..iveennns 5,122.76
{8) First Bank of Virginia,

Arlington, Virginia ....ceae. 513.73

(§) The following automobiles having a
total value of $16,000.00:

(1) One 1976 Hornet two-door hatchback:

{2) One 1977 two-door Chevrolet Monte Carlo:
(3) One 1975 four-door Oldsmobile Regency:
(4) One 1975 four-door Oldsmobile Cutlass.

(k) All right, title and interest in and
to the following life insurance policies with
New York Life Insurance Company on the life of
gusband. in the amounts and face values as fol-

ows:

(1) $100,000.00 whole life policy:;

(2) $50,000.00 whole life policy;

(3) $50,000.00 whole life policy:

(4) $10,000.00 whole life family plan policy:

(5) $40,000.00 term insurance to the extent
assignable.

The parties acknowledge that the foregoing whole
life insurance policies are subject to indebtelness
that renders their respective cash values virtually
a nullity.

(1) Clothing and perscnal effects of Wife.

4. From the community debts, the Husband ghall
assume as his sole and separate debts, from which the Wife
shall be free of any liability or obligation, the following
items:

(a) The indebtedness on all real property
of these parties, including, but not limited to,
the following properties for the following amounts:

(1) The real property and house situated

thereon located at 4700 38th Place North,

-Arlington, Virginia, presently subject to
an indebtedness in the sum of $105,000.00;

(2) The real property and house situvated

thereon, located at 730 Ada, Paragould,

Arkansas, presently subject to indebtedness

in the sum of §3,468.69;

(3) The real property and building situated
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therecn, being the present gite of the
Copy Cat business, located at 420 North
Main Street, Pocatello, Idaho, presently
subject to indebtedness in the sum of
$80,000.00;

1b) Secured indebtedness on equipment
located in the Copy Cat business in the sum
of §9,763.00;

(c) Credit and charge card payables
and accounts in the sum of $7,000.00;

{d) Attorneys' fees in the sum of
§4,999.39;

(e) Loans from New York Life Insurance
Company on the policies on the lives of both
Husband and Wife in the total sum of $44,552.77
(including the sum of 59,306.93 required to pay
New York Life Insurance Company to reinstate
some of the policies for back premiums);

(£} Loan from the United States Retire-
ment Fund in the sum of $23,500.00;

{(g) Loan from the Valley Bank, Pocatello,
Idaho, in the sum of $10,000.00;

(h} Loan from the Bank of Idaho, Poca-
tello, Idaho, in the sum of $13,000.00;

(i) Loan from Idaho Bank & Trust, Poca-
tello, Idaho, in the sum of $10,536.14;

(j) Loan from the First Bank & Trust,
Malad, Idaho, in the sum of 522,044.78;

(k) Secured loan on some of the ahove
referenced automobiles from the Valley Bank,
Idahe Falls, Tdaho, in the sum of §3,700.00;

(1) Loan from the First Security Bank,
Pocatello, Idaho, in the sum of 5$12,150.00;

{m) loan from the Idaho State Bank,
Glenns Ferry, Idaho, in the sum of $10,000.00;

(n) Loan from the Arlington Trust Company
in Arlington, Virginia, in the sum of $2,439.58;

(o} 1Indebtedness to the House of Repre-
sentatives' Sergeant of Arms' account in the
sum of $13,200.00;

(p) Present interest owed on outstanding
indebtedness, $17,200.00;

{g) Personal loans in the total sum of none
§ —=BD.O0== . B
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5. From the community debts, the Wife shall assume
as her sole and separate debts, from which the Husband shall
be free of any liability or obligation, the following items:

(a) Loan from the First National Bank,
Dallas, Texas, in the sum of $50,000.00;

. (b) Personal loans in the sum of
372.750.00 -

6. The parties hereby agree to maintain in force
the policies of insurance awarded to them by the terms hereof.

7. It is understood and agreed that the Husband
may claim all children &s may be dependent at any time as
exemptions on his income tax returns.

8. The parties acknowledge that funds received by
Wife as a result of a personal solicitation, commencing in
May and June, 1977, are gifts to the Wife and are therefore
her separate property.

9. Husband shall pay to Wife, as and for separate
maintenance, the sum of $1,000.00 per month, or such other
sum as hereafter agreed to by the parties in writing.

10. Tax refunds from any joint income tax filings
by these parties shall be divided between these parties as
separate proceeds in proportion to each party's respective
reported gross income, .

11. All references herein to the term “present”,
with reference to value, refer to the date of June 21, 1977.

12. Husband shall provide such funds as may be
necessary to support and maintain the minor children of these
parties.

13, Each of the parties hereto agrees to execute,
siyn and deliver over to the other party, any and all docu~

ments, certificates, titles, deeds and other instruments as
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may be necessary to convey and transfer the hereinabove ligted
real and personal property ¢o the party indicated, and to do
80 within a reasonable time upon reguest by the other party.

14. It is further agreed that any and all property
acquired from and after the effective date of this agreement
shall be the scle and geparate property of the one so acquir-
ing the same, and each of the parties hereto does hereby waive
any and all right in or to such future acquisitions and does
hereby grant to the other all such future acquisitions of
property as the sole and separate property of the one so
acquiring the same.

15. Each party hereto does hereby waive any and
all right to inherit the estate of the other at his or her
death or to take property from the other by devise or
bequest unless under a will executed subseguent to the
effective date herecf, or to claim any family allowance or
probate homestead or to act as personal representative of
the estate of the other (except as a ncminee of the other
person legally entitled to said right) or to act as the per-
sonal representative under the will of the other, unless
under a will executed subsequent to the effective date hereof.

16. The effective date of this agreement shall be
September 30, 1977, and all values as of June 21, 1977, are
for reference purposes only.

17. Each of the parties hereto, upon execution of
this agreement, waives as to the other any claim, right,
title and interest awarded by said agreement to the other,
and waives all other claims, save and except as herein pro-
vided, and each agrees that he or she will not incur any

liability on behalf of the other, recognizing that the property
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herein awarded to the other is the sole and separate property
of the. party to whom so avarded.

18. .All matters affecting the interpretation of
this agreement and the rights of the parties heretc shall
be governed by the laws of the State of Idaho.

19. All provisions of this agreement shall be
binding upon the respective heirs, next of kin, Personal
-Tepresentatives and assigns of the parties hereto.

20. This agreement shall be sxecuted in guadruplicate,
each of which so executed ghall be desmed an original and shall
constitute .one and the sane agreement,.with an executed copy to
be retained by each of the parties hereto.

' IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties.have hereunto set
their hands and seals;;and have hereby-crused this agreement

to be executed-upon the 30th day of September, 1377.

. CONSTANCE 5. HANSEN
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washington

“BENEE-OR-3DNI® )
DistreTof Columbia) g5,
GOUNEY—OPE-ADA )

On this 30th day of September &M&r_e me, the
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for . personally
appeared GEORGE V. HANSEN and CONSTANCE §. BANSEN, known to
me to be the persons whose names are subscribed to the within

instrument, and acknowledged to wme that they executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and

affixed my official seal, the day and year in this certificate
first above written.

Notary/Public for State/of i1daho,
Residing at Boise, Idaho.
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BRIEFING BOOK EX, /&

June 3, 1977

The Honorable Richardson Preyer, M. C.
Chairman, the Select Committee on Ethics .
23LL R.H.0.B.

Dear Mr. Chairman:

I am writing this letter at the request of my husband, Congressman George
Hepsen, to advise you of my intentions with regards to certain actions
teken by your committee.

As you probably know, my husband plans to sbide by your decisions with
regard to his request to raise funds to pay off politically-ceused personal
indebtedness. KReither he, nor I, nor an independent committee will solicit
funds in his behalf.

Hovever, I believe the Committee has been totally unressonable in this matter
and I can't help but be disturbed &t the double standards I have witnessed.

Wnile my husband has carefully msked the Federal Election Commission and your
Committee and other appropriate suthority for permission and guidance to solve
& very resl and legitimate personal problen arising from political dirty
tricks and harrassment, I have witnessed instance after instance of Mecbers
of Copgress taking solicited funds, including carpsign contributions, for
personal use without asking and the Committee has had little to say about it.

Fow, let me inform you that I don't intend to stand dy and let a Comrittee
of Congress or anyone else deprive me of the basic rights of a citizen of
this netion to pay my bills and protect my home. Many members of your
Committee talk a good story about civil rights and the equelity of women
but then they sit there sougly and deny those very rights to the vife of
a Menber of Congress.

1 ar & citizen of Jdeho which is m community property state and therefore
I stand liable for half of this politically-caused indebtedness. Furthermore,
if my husband should die, it is all my responsibility.

And the debt in cuestion is the result of & concentrated political smear
campaign which occurred during my husband's candidacy for Congress as &
pon-incumbent in 197k.
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The economic effects to us personally were disastrous. We found our totel
time consumed month after month in defending mgainst these malicious ettacks
vhich included sericus and irresponesible charges led by former Congressman
Wayne Hays and surreptitious acquisition of our personal credit records by
the State Treasurer of the Democratic Party in Idsho.

This drum roll of false accusations and misleading press releases from
Washington as well as Idaho almost overvhelmed us and left us no time to
manage our personal business operations which resulted in heavy expenses
and loses -~ a situation which has tekeh many months to reverse.

Not only were we incurring business losses and@ heavy legal and professional
expenses, but my husband vas precluded from earning income because his total
effort was required to counter the vicious attecks.

As a result of these false accusations, my husband hes hed to endure three
years of investigations by various federal agencies which have proved nothing
but his honesty.

Therefore, faced with this burdensome personal indebtedness, I have as a
matter of love for my husband and children and financial preservation of our
family insisted upon a financial settlement between my husband and myself
legally and properly dividing our property. In part the property settlement
provides that my husband assume such debts as those of the family, the home,
cars, charge cards and such and that I assume a substantial portion of those
debts politicelly incurred.

This separation of personal finances is done with considerable difficulty to
us as a farily, not only now but for years to come -- which seexs a strange
wey for you to treat the victims of ugly politics.

lovever, I do what I must. Let me advise you that as a matter of persocpel
and family survivel, I plan to raise funds at an early date to pey my half
of the debts in proper and legal fashion. Your arbitrary rules may extend
to my busband es a Member of Congress, but I do not belong to that body.

I em & free agent with rights and responsibilities of my own and I'11 teke
my cese to the courts and to the people if necessary.

Sincerely,

tcsic Y5 2 e

Mrs. George V. Ransen
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TR BRIEFING BOOK EX. /G o

163 Fevanu, Sacses
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e " * PHouse of Representatives B
ors Eashington, B.€. 20515 - - B
BSELECT COMMITTEE OMN P nensuias
AEEASSINATIONS Cmsery
ITTERE .
June 8, 1977

-

Mrs. Gecrge Hansen
4700 3Bth Place North
Arlington, Virginia 22207

Dear Mrs. Bansen:.

Thank you for your letter of June 3 advising me of your intention to
proceed with a personal fund-raising €Xfort to Tretire certain debts that
you have assumed.

I hope that you will understand that the content of the advisory
opinions addressing issues referred to us by your husband were in no
way meant to infringe on your civil rights nor on your equality as

a woman. Neither were those opinions aimed in any personal way against
your husband or your family.

The Code of Ethics adopted by the Eouse on March 2 resulted directly
from sustained public criticism of some Members' actions prior to that
date. Your statement that Members converted caspaign contributions to
personal use before the ethics code was adopted is entirely correct.

It is also true that such conversion was not prohibitied before March 2
as it is now. .

I have asked the Select Committee's Staff Director if our staff is awvare
of any such. conversions since the code was adopted. He advised me

that no such-sitvations have been brought to his attention.

Thank you again for your advice and views.

Cordially,

Richardson Preyer

-

RP:bib _ g
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MRS. GEORGE HAKSEXN
4700 38th Place, North
Arlington, Va., 22207

Dear Friend: BRIEFING BOOK X, 0

I'm the wife of a conservative Congressman and I
need your help. My family and I are the victims of a
long political nightmare 2nd our fight for survival now
depends on me. Let me explain why I'm writing this letter
to you. d -

Quite frankly, I'm appealing to your sense of Justice
and fair play. Here's why.

Three continuous vicious years of personal and
political attacks on my busband by powerful liberals and
labor bosses led by such people as Wayne Hays have forced
us into outrageous expenses and & huge pdlitically-caused
personal debt. ’ o .

R .
) My husband, Congressman George Hansen {(Idzaho), a
pationally known conservative leader,” has for two straight
elections withstood every assault the liberal opposition

- could muster. .

They have charged him wildly and pushed him into
investigation after investigation which never proved any-
thing but his honesty. { Their ugly attempts even included

- the use of illegal means to invade our private tax and
credit records. k

These tactics cost his campaign committee over
$400,000 for the past two elections in a state where such
races average $75,000 each. -

This means our friends and supporters have been
forced by dirty tricks and harassment to overspend by a
quarter of a million dollars more than we should have
needed to win. With greoat effort most of this campaign
money has been raised.

However, the attacks and dirty tricks took their
toll personally and we find ourselves faced with a huge
politically-caused personal debt similar in amount to the
campaign expenditures.

My husband planned to solicit funds to pay these
politically-caused personal debts and he submitted his
pProposal to the Federal Election Commission which found
no objection.




220

But now he has. ME m double standards
of Congress! The newafio ic tee arbitrarily
says he can't raise such funds even though they are for
political reimbursement and not for perscnal gain!

To show the inconsistency of their reasoning, during
the same period while my busband was carefully asking per-
mission, one Democrat Congressman transferred $99,000
from his political campaign fund to his private funds.

And apother fund-raising activity was going on fozr another
Democrat Congressman, raising $22,500 to build a new wing
on his house!

My husband bas beaten the attacks by the liberals
now for three years. They couldn't destroy him by in-
vestigation and the!r harassment couldn't keep him from
effectively doing his job or: prevent his great achieve-
ments in the battle to keep our nation‘ffrong and free.

This has been accomplished because of George's dedi-
cation and long hours end I've belped him by working full

. time in his office, without pay, I might add.

However, they bave wounded us badly financially, and
now hi.ve succeeded in stopping him personally from any
finangial repair, short of resigning from Congress. This
is what the liberals want, of course. If they can't
defeat you at the polls! it seems they won't quit until
they ruin you finmancially.

Well; they baven't won this battle because I have
some rights, too. :

Those chivalrous liberals on the House Ethics Commit-
tee who are always talking women's rights have just tried
to sentence me as a wife and mother of five to an impossi-
ble debt burden. But they're not going to get away with it

My husband is abiding by the decision of the Commit-
tee--the so-called Club rules. However, I am not a member
of Congress and I am not bound by them.

Idaho, you see, is a community property state and 1
am liable for half my husband's debts and if he should
die, I'11 have the full burden.

So here's what I've decided. George and I have
arrived at a legal and equal division of property and
indebtedness where he has assumed the debts of the family-
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the house, the cars, the charge cards and so forth, which
he will pay properly from his pay check.

And I have assumed a substantial portion of those
debts arising from the political dirty tricks--debts of
hundreds of thousands of dollars--and I urgently a2sk your
help to save my family from financial disaster.

Our three-year battle for survival against the horrors
of the liberal harassment will all be for nothing unless
I can win this final battle which I have been forced to do
by myself. -

Please note. I am abiding by the guidelines of my
husband's agreement with the FEC--no funds from corpora-
tions will be accepted, nor from federal employees, nor
in gifts of %100 or more from one person.

I urgently need your help. The burden on us has
been unbelievable. Won't you help me by sending as much
as you ‘possibly can, $98, or $75, or even $50, %25, or
$10?

I promise you that I will deposit your donation
promptly into a special bank account I've set up to pay
off these debts.

I anxiously await your reply as soon as possible.

Gratefully yours,
Ctrnie s in

Mrs. George Hansen

L Lty g

36-291 0—84—15
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: BRIEFING B .
Honorable Richardson Preyer oox  Ex .2/

Chairman, Select Committee on Ethics
3557 House Office Building, Annex #2

Dear Mr. Chairmant

By reason of information which appeared in a May 7th newspaper in my
Congressional District I have been subjected to innuendo that my
recent Financial Disclosure Statement filed pursuant to Rule XLIV is
in some manner inadequate or incomplete. T immediately contacted
Staff Directors Donald Terry of the Select Committee on Ethics and
John M. Swanner of the House Comnittee on Standards of Official
Conduct and certain Members of those committees to protest the quotes
ascribed to a staff wember in that article.

At my request I met with Mr. Terry and Attorney James Haltiwanger of
the Standards Committee Monday afterncon in company with my Attorney
James T. McKenna. Mr. Haltiwanger advised me thac the reporter in
question, Mr. David Morrissey of the Tvin Falls Times News, had tele-
phoned him several times last week and that he had answered all guestions
in a purely hypothetical manner. He stated that the reporter had
misused the quotes, leaving out the éssential hypothetical nature of
the answers and most particularly he had omitted Mr. Haltiwanger's
statement that my report wae complete on ite face and that he knew

of no irregularities. Mr. Haltiwanger said that on Thursday the
conversation was so warped he was compelled to tell the reporter that
his contentions were a lie and believes it possible that he was named
in the article &s an act of vengeance.

While there is no doubt as to the sincerity and integrity of Mr.
Haltiwanger, the misuse of the quotations has the potential for

causing me great embarrassment. You will remember that prior to
arranging my affairs in order to satisfy the requirements of my
situation, that your committees were kept advised at all tives of

the menner in which I planned to proceed and then of my wife's intended
covrse of action and the details of her decision.
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At considerable expense I retained legal coumnsel to procure & ruling
from the Federal Election Commission and to assure my compliasnce with
the legal matters under jurisdiction of the Justice Department before
moving to satisfy the rules and standards of the House as administered
by the Select Committee on Ethics and tlu Committee on Standards of
0fficial Conduct.

My entire course of action was predicated upon conforming to the law
and to the rulings of both comittees, and wy wife has proceeded likewise
when it became necessary for her to act independently. We executed a

specific property division apreement effective in June 1977 in compliance

with the law and House Rules to ensble each party to be free of any

constructive control” of the othexr. This was done at my wife's
insistence that her civil rights were being violated by arbitrary
Congressional Rules threatening her survival and that she was entitled
to independently protect and provide for herself by her own devices.

This property division agpreement was not arbitrarily or opportunely

made for reporting purposes but rather done at an eariy date to satisfy
House Rules and according to legal guidelines. Nevertheless this
created an exemption of spouse reporting according to Rule XLIV which
states, "The interest of s spouse or any other party, if constructively
controlled by the person reporting, shall be considered to be the same
as the interest of the person reporting.”

Rule XLIV under provisions adopted effective July 1, 1977 further states,
“Each report shall also contain information 1isted in paragraphs 1 through
5 of this part B respecting the spouse of the person reporting which
information relates to items under the constructive control of such
person.”

Advisory opinion #12 issued December 1, 1977 specifically acknowledges
the exclusion of.spouses not under "constructive control” in providing
additional detailed requirements for spouse disclosure--requirements
which clearly do not apply to those:not under “constructive control”
as in the case of my wife whose financial situation has been legally
separated from my own.

Any disclosure of my wife's interests now by me: is not possible and
would be an infringement upon her legal independence and privacy and
unilaterally sbortive of the settlement agreement made earlier in
compliance with House Rules.

I am confident that my filing, done carefully with advice of legal
counsel, is completely in sccord with the appropriate Rules of the
House and in accord with the course of action of which we have kept
your office conpletely advised. At this tiwe I respectfully request
confirmation of the validity of my report.
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In addition, my filing was made tinely and iu good faith and comments
by staff with the potential for severe damage to me and to my wife are
‘particularly inappropriate. This is not the first time the Ethics
“staff has been victimized by designing elements of the press vhere I
sm concerned and I must assume that Mr. Haltiwvanger joins with me in
condemning the shoddy reportorial technique which produced the article
of which I complain. 1 would expect that your committees will take
early steps to correct the record in this matter.

Sincerely

GEORGE BANSER
Menber of Congress

ce: Hon. Charles E. Wiggins
Ranking Minority Menber
Select Committee on Ethics

Hon. Bill Frenzel
Member )
Select Committee on Ethics

Hon. John J. Flynt
Chairman
Standards of Official Conduct

Hon. Floyd D. Spence
Ranking Minority Member
Standards’ of Official Conduct
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4700 38th Place North
Arlington, V:lrginh 22207

lhy 11, 1978

Honorable R:lc'hardson Preyer
. Chairmsn, Select Committee on Ethics BR'E""G BOOK EX. -? '?
3557 House O0ffice Building, Annex #2

Washington, D. C. 20515 )

Dear Mr. Chairman:

A property settlement agreement between me and my husband, Congressman
George Hansen, effective in June of 1977 was duly executed in accordance
with Idaho law.

This was done necessarily to protect my civil rights, personal privacy
and individual financial right to survive.

Assets znd debts assumed by me were precisely what an equitable legal
division would allow, and nothing else.

Having gone to this trouble and expense I consider myself an independent
citizen absolutely and legally not under the “constructive control" of
my husband. And I might add, he is alsoc an independent citizen not
under my "constructive control.”

1 plan to take care of my financial needs and problems in accordance with
the law and the highest standards of ethics and will in no way be
adversely influencing my husband’s life or responsibilities as a Member
of Congress or whatever capacity he might hold.

But beyond this, what I do with my private life is legally my private
. business. I am not a Member of Congress and have no further obligation
to you or your committee.

VWhat my husband does may be yours to supervise, but he is in no legal
position to involve me.

Sincerely,

(Mrs.) CONNIE S. HANSEN




GEORGE HANSEN
Sacont DIsTRCY, Toae

1123 Loswewoatn BuoLowE
Wasunaton, D.C. 20013
o (202) 225530

CRMMITTER B BUBEHM MITTERD.

BANKING. FINANCE AND
URBAN AFFAIRE

Dautaric MonETany Poucy
(Maretseel MEMBER)

ol INETTUT NG
BUFCEYIRon
OVEREIGHT AND
MEMESOTIATION
VETERANS' AFFAIRS

Crurtrmes ant Bunisi, BIuLriTs
MEoicAL FACILTIES and BONEFTE

Honorable Richardson Preyer

Conaress of the TUnited States
FBouse of Repredentatibes

TWashington, B. €.

June 2, 1978

e DisTect Orrces
UPFPER SNAKE RIVER VALLEY
2111 Feotaa Buiowes
Bax 740, Ioaws Fares, Ioawe 3401
Tou. 523331

SOUTHEASTERN IDAHO

K Ton: 132-0900
MAGIC VALLEY
To81 Bt Laxes Bountvanp NowTh
Tow FaLLe, 10awe B3R
THL: 734-8448

WESTERN IDAHD
442 Bonan Feormal Bowowes
304 Noxrm 8T STazey
Bont, tnana 83704
ToO. 34-188

BRIEFING BOOK EX. 25

Chairman, Select Committee on Ethics
3557 House Office Building, Annex #2

Daer Mr. Chairman:

On May 9th I wrote to you regarding my Financial Disclosure Statemznt,
vecently filed as required, apprising you of a recurring problem of
improper disclosure by Ethics and Standards Committee staff members
of information regarding my situation and requesting a confirmation of
the validity of my report as filed.

The real problem as I then stated is the obvious determination of some
elements of the press, irregardless of time and finances involved, to
actually stir up problems for me.

I enclose two recent press releases which are typical and which
demonstrate my point, one from the Idaho State Journal of 5-8-78 and
one from the Idaho Statesman dated 5-12-78. Each picks up where the
{11-advised and twisted Morrissey article of May 7 leaves off. They
not only rehearse the scenario set by Morrissey, but they suggest the
means to push a complaint against me.

1f you question the use of the phrase "push a complaint,” then please
read the first paragraph of the Statesman article by Bill Dietrich of
the Gannett News Service. 1In phrasing which is nothing less,than an
invitation to action, the paragraph begins, "a formal complaint from
a menber of the public will probably be needed..."

Now if you will place this in context with the enclosed statement from
Committee Attorney Jim Haltiwanger, you will see what is happening to
the Committee and to me. We are both being manipulated into unnecessary
and embarrassing circumstances which have little or nothing to do with
ethics or proper disclosure.

Now this isn't new to me, Mr. Chairman. In fact;"this has been the name

of the game for four years now, four years of phony chargeg by my political
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opposition, phony 'charges given distorted credibility and semsational
coverage by scandal-mongering and politically-oriented elements of the
press.

Fighting these trumped-up charges has cost me a fortune and is the
reason why my case ever came before you in the first place.

1 had hoped not to get into all the problems of the past particularly
because of the questionable involvements of certain elements here in
the Congress, but it now appears that it is necessary to tell you where
it bagsn gid wEREUE Y6 Alout. And you might keep in mind how such
selective political persecution could alsoc happen to you or any Member
of Congress or any aspiring candidate.

In 1974 1 was involved in a primary election with an incumbent Congressman
vho coincidentally was a Member of the House Administration Committee and
a good friend of its Chairman Wayne Hays. I had been a Member of Congress
for two terms in the sixties before dropping out to run unsuccessfully

for the U.S. Senate in 1968. I subsequently spent three years in an
administrative position with the U.S. Department of Agriculture and then
returned to private business for another three years before again running
for Congress.

The 1974 race was one which received some national exposure because the
candidates were all named Hansen. It was George Hansen vs. Orval Hansen
in the Primary and George Hansen vs. Max Hanson in the General.

My Primary election success against the incumbent Orval apparently came
as a shock to him and certain of his supporters who reacted quite bitterly.

Certain people close to the defeated incumbent wrote letters of complaint
to the Clerk of the House and House Administration Committee making random
complaints about my campaign reports which, of course, prompted inquiry.

A team came to Idaho at the close of the Primary election in early August
1974 including Mr. John Warren MeGarry, personal investigator for Wayne
Hays, who never adequately identified himself as any more than an observer.

This group returned to Washington giving the impression they were reasonably
satisfied that campaign reporting was adequate and asking that I clarify
certain matters regarding the nature of a number of small checks received--
checks ranging from $10 to $200 which needed clarification as to whether
corporate funds were involved (the FBI later established the funds were

not corporate and therefore legal.) I gave them copies of the checks at

my own expense, copies that were not even required to be kept.
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Before any clarif{ication was possible the press reported that McGarry
had appeared before the HAC (this was Tuesday morning and he “had been in
. I1daho only two days before on the weekend) and charged massive campaign
violations mostly involving the checks, but so much fabrication and
distortion in the material presented to the committee and in statements
and acticns thereby prompted that my attorney soon found it necessary
to threaten legal action against Hays and the Committee to put an end to
this exploitive behavior and stabilize the situvation.

Hays was engaging in his usual extroverted display which, of course,
produced screaming headlines in the media and I was immediately made to
look grossly guilty of something without ever having opportunity to
directly or indirectly present my side of the issve. Certain non-Idaho
Members of Congress on the House Administration Committee seemed to
become instant experts on ldaho law publicly suggesting that I resign
so my opponent, a member of the committee, could be reinstated on the
ballot for the General Election.

Hays, it should be remembered, was fighting Common Cause and others to
retain his czardom over elections and other House activities and was
using select examples to point out the adequacy of the existing laws and
rules. Press releases at the time showed this to be central to his
thinking, however the welfare of my defeated primary opponent who served
on his Committee and who was his good friend certainly only made the
matter more to his liking as other records show.

In an attempt to get out of Hays' political shooting gallery and before
an objective forum, I contacted certain HAC Members and asked that they
refer the matter to the Justice Department as quickly as possible. The
atmosphere was so poisoned that Hays couldn't avoid such action and the
Federal Bureau of Investigation soon appeared on the scene. Of course,
the press played this unanimous referral to the Justice Department as
evidence of apparent guilt rather than need for an impartial forum for
developing factual informationm.

In the meantime 1 was tipped off by my Democratic General Election opponent
that my Republican Primary Election opponent had asked a certain prominent

Democrat businessman to get my credit report. This was done by Pocatello

businessman Mel Morgan who was the Democratic State Treasurer in an apparent

111legal act that prompted a second and concurrent FBI Investigation which
resulted in action to prosecute.

A lawsuit resulting from this purloining of my credit report is currently
active and was recently heard before the U.5. Court of Appeals in San
Francisco on May 12, 1978.
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Depositions and Court records show the credit report was sent from

. Pocatello to Mr. Morgen in Los Angeles who upon receiving it’ took it
immediately to Washington for personal delivery to Orval Hansen (who
had requested the report). Orval then turned this 11legally procured
report over to John Warren McCarry for transmission to Hays, a particu-
larly dangerous operation actually involving an official body of the
House of Representatives in an apparent viclation of the law and basic
right of privacy.

However, this violation of the civil rights and privacy rights of me and
oy wife in the 1974 Congressional election was not confined to the
credit report; it happened several times regarding our private bank
accounts. Even Internal Revenue Service confidentiality was obviously
breached, a situation which developed in the 1976 election into a whole-
sale illegal and erroneous IRS disclosure of my income tax filing
records, disclosure which is now being investigated and prosecuted by
Federal Agents.

In 1974 the FBI was pushed back into the field on my case time and
again by Hays who wasn't satisfied that they had found nothing more
than possible minor unintentional bookkeeping errors common to most any
political campaign. However, this was finally certified to Hays in a
letter from the Acting Attorney General who verified that after an
exhaustive investigation that there were no felonies found.

A baffled federal judge in U.S. District Court proceedings on April 25,
1975, expressed repeatedly, "I can't conceive that the Government would
have brought this case if that's 211 that was involved in it." and "1

can't conceive that 1f all that was done in this case was simply to make

a mistake between reporting personally and reporting properly by comnittee,
and that it was reported properly in all, that the Government would have
brought the case. 1 just can't conceive it."

The Judge was then told, “What's before your Honor right now is what is
the end product of a very exhaustive investigation" and “that was not

the result of plea bargaining..." The matter of being singled out for
selective application of justice was discussed in light of reports that
thousands of similar infractions common to most campaigns including "the
other four candidates in Idaho” had never come before the Courts. It

was then stated "Justice has to act when something is brought to their
attention. And the man that Congressman Hansen defeated in the Primary,

a Mr. Orval Hansen, who was no relation to him, is on the very committee...
that reported this matter to the Justice Department."

The Court admitted to its own error in an earlier hearing on this case
when it attempted to impose a jail sentence by stating, "I must say that



230

vhen this case cana‘alons. it seemed to me like a proper case to try by
deterrents to stop some of the things that had been going on. NWow if 1

have used the improper technique to do this, then I will reconsider the
matter."

The Court's reconsideration concluded that "although the wrong committee
made the report of receipts and expenditures, that a correct reporting
of the receipts and expenditures was made" but that didn't prevent a
continued application of selective justice, assessing of a fine of $1000
on each of the two counts which is excessive and unreascnable by all
contemporary standards.

Compare my situation where only unintentional, technical bookkeeping
errors are involved with all funds accounted for, and the numerous other
publicized cases of recent years where smaller fines and penalties (or
none at all) were given for problems much more serious than mine, such
as non-filing, non-disclosure, receipt of large and corporate funds.

And I am not just speaking of House Members, I am also referring to
Senate races such as the 1974 bid for re-election in Idaho of a seasoned
veteran who had a key financial comrmittee miss several reporting periods
without repercussion and again in 1976 as a presidential candidate he
experienced several significant publicized reporting deficiencies without
penalty. The 1976 Presidential campaigns of Jimmy Carter, Gerald Ford
and Ronald Reagan alsc experienced several large campaign report discrep-
ancies without suffering a personal assault on their character and
integrity or an unending series of politically prompted and financially

burdensome government investigatory fishing expeditions into.their personal
and public activities.

Perhaps the most recent case-in-point to illustrate the overkill I
experienced is that of White House assistant Midge Constanza, who with
serious intentional violations involving a large amount of money was only
fined $500 by the FEC, and then cnly reluctantly.

Defending myself against all of this left me and my campaign deeply in

debt. By early 1976 the campaign fund alone was $90,000, in the red. To
rectify this, I launched a nationwide direct mail campaign fund-appeal

vhich successfully paid off the debt by attracting thousands of contributors.

The contributions were generally small and too numerous to itemize on reports
which only require such itemization of contributions over $100 in guaram-
teeing the basic right of privacy to small donors. Nevertheless, sensing

the blood of a wounded prey after the dirty tricks of the 1974 election,

the opposition complained to the FEC of non-disclosure and played to the
press about a huge coverup of canpaign funds.
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Of course there were large amounts received, but little more.than enough
to pay off the debts of the previous caspaign investigation and the cost
of new charges lodged with the FEC.

The funds, available for actual campaign use after "survival costs” were
deducted for legal, professional, and other related fees =nd bills, were
less than adequate. We had to win the past two hotly-contested elections
without even an ad on TV while the opposition had substantial® messages
appearing on the seven major commercial stations in the District, not to
mention the educational chanpels.

The absence of this kind of medis, to offset the continued untrue and
_distorted charges by the opposition of irregularities in my campaign
finance reports, income tax filings, and other matters of finance,
obviously put my campaign efforts at a distinct disadvantage.

Of course the FEC finally announced several months after the election

on April 1, 1977, that there had been no campaign violations by either me
or my committee. And in September of 1977 I received a letter of apology
from a high ranking IRS official for an improper disclosure of my tax
filing records, a disclosure that contained serious error and which was
grossly distorted and sensationalized in the press.

While some political strategists may believe in the dirty-tricks strategy
of keeping an opponent and his organization tied up in terms of time and
money by making unfounded charges, I personally believe such practices

are destructive of our process of self-government. And worse yet, when
such tactics are accompanied by the breaking of the law, it is reprehensible
and must be stopped imnediately.

For nearly four yeare this has been happening to me. It began in the 1974
primary election with irresponsible charges made to the House Administration
Committee and elements of that committee being involved in the apparent
illegal invasion of my credit report. Then during the general election
shaded allegations were made regarding my income taxes which, considered

in light of events during the 1976 election, would suggest probable illegal
disclosure.

In the 1976 election, charges of violations of campaign Reporting require-
ments were washed out as mentioned above, but the fact that complaints
vere made directly and indirectly to the FEC by officials of my opponent's
organization without being recognized and his campaign also being investi-
gated equally as required by law is a matter of concern. :

The end of the 1976 campaign, however, brought a massive invasion of my
Federal tax filing records involving key and high ranking officials of the
Internal Revenue Service, my opponent's campaign organization and elements





